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A. PERFORMANCE REPORT

The performance report has been prepared in accordance with the government
Financial Reporting Manual and complies with best practice.

1. Overview

Strategy and Principal Activities

The Board was estabiished in 1974 under the National Health Service (Scotland) Act,
1972 and is responsible for commissioning healthcare services for the residents of
Ayrshire and Arran, a total population of 368,000.

Health Boards form a local health system, with single governing boards responsible for
improving the health of their local populations and delivering the healthcare they
require. The overall purpose of the unified Board is to ensure the efficient, effective and
accountable governance of the local NHS system and to provide strategic leadership
and direction for the system as a whole.

The role of the unified Board is to:

. improve and protect the health of the local people;

. improve health services for local people;

. focus clearly on health outcomes and people’s experience of their local NHS
system;

) promote integrated health and community planning by working closely with
other local organisations; and

. provide a single focus of accountability for the performance of the local NHS
system.

The functions of the unified Board comprise:
. strategy development;
. resource allocations;
. implementation of the Local Delivery Plan; and
. performance management;

Health and Social Care Integration

In May 2012, the Scottish Government launched a public consultation to inform
recommendations for legislation to support the integration of adult health and social
care in Scotland and replace Community Health Partnerships (CHP) with Health and
Social Care Partnerships (HSCP). The Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Bill
was passed on 25 February 2013 and received Royal Assent in April 2014 with
commencement in April 2015.

During 2013/2014, the three councils in Ayrshire agreed the scope of services to be
included in partnerships. At its meeting on 31 March 2014 the Health Board approved
the services to be managed in the partnerships. These ran in shadow form in 2014/15
as Shadow Integration Boards. In February 2015, Schemes of Establishment for three
Integration Joint Boards were submitted to, and approved by, Scottish Government and
the Cabinet Secretary signed orders establishing them from 1 April 2015. The three
Integration Joint Boards were live in 2015/2016 and their accounts have been




consolidated in the Board accounts from April 2015. In 2017 a consultation on the
arrangements in North and East Ayrshire concluded with no change proposed.

The Integration Joint Boards in Ayrshire and Arran had responsibility for the preparation
of Strategic Plans and have objectives including minimising delayed discharge from
hospital and reducing emergency admissions. In 2016/2017, £19.33 million of funding
to health was earmarked for social care and was passed to Integration Joint Boards.
This increased to £27 million in 2017/2018.

Acute Services

A new Accident and Emergency unit at Ayr became operational in February 2016 and
the Combined Assessment unit at Crosshouse opened to patients in May 2016. The
Combined Assessment Unit at University Hospital Ayr opened in May 2017,

Over £5 million of revenue has been invested recurringly over the last four years in
unscheduled care capacity to manage increasing demand.

Mental Health / North Ayrshire Community Hospital

A £47 million community hospital in Irvine was built under the non-profit distributing
model and opened in April 2016 which allowed consolidation of mental health inpatient
beds from three sites and the modern premises will allow better clinical care, better
observation and an improved environment for patients. VWhilst most patients have
moved off the Ailsa Hospital site, there remain Elderly Mentai Health wards.

Capital Schemes

Capital expenditure totalling £8.6 million has been incurred in the year, which matches
the capital allocation for the year. The following are the main capital spend areas during
2017/2018.

Capital Schemes £000
Building for Better Care 119
Water infrastructure and lift upgrades 775
Electro Medical Equipment 3,226
IT Projects 1,308
Endoscopy decontamination 473
Furniture and Equipment 70
Energy Saving Projects 1,162
Laboratory 399
Paediatric ward isolation rooms 431
Diabetes day centre 227
Radiology reporting 176
Front door improvements - UHA 254
Other small capital projects 146
Capital receipts less profit and fees (200)
Total: 8,566




Counter Fraud Service

The National Counter Fraud Service has calculated an estimated potential level of
fraud/error for calendar year 2017 in relation to Ayrshire and Arran patients wrongly
claiming exemption from dental and ophthalmic charges. These are based on
extrapolation of a smali sample and are shown in the table below:

Ayrshire and Arran Estimated Potential Fraud/Error
Year 2016 2017

Dental fees £500,503 £380,481
Ophthalmic fees £135,540 £130,108

Revenue Budget 2017/2018

Two thirds of the recurring funding uplift for NHS Ayrshire & Arran in 2016/2017 and
2017/2018 was earmarked by Scottish Government for social care. NHS Ayrshire &
Arran passed this social care funding (£19.33 million and £7.7 million) to the three
Health and Social Care Partnerships in Ayrshire.

The Board set a budget for 2016/2017, which predicted a deficit of £13.2 miilion. This
was based on £48 million of health cost pressures (including £7 million for national
insurance change and £13 million drugs cost pressures), against a funding uplift
available for healthcare pressures of £10 million and the Board only being able to
deliver £25 million of recurring efficiency savings. The Board was able to achieve a
small surplus in 2016/2017 through non-recurring means; however had an underlying
recurring deficit of £13.2 million carried into 2017/2018.

During 2017/2018, University Hospital Crosshouse and University Hospital Ayr had on
average over 100 unfunded beds open throughout the year due to unscheduled care
demand which (along with unachieved efficiency savings) led to an Acute Division
overspend of £11.5 million. The Board required £23 million of brokerage from Scottish
Government to cover the underlying deficit and overspends in 2017/2018.

Risks

The Governance Statement outlines the high risks within the strategic risk register and
gives a fuller description of actions in relation to the four very high risks, which relates to
lack of medical staff, GP workforce, primary care sustainability and ability to deliver
efficiency savings to balance the budget.




Chief Executive Summary

The financial plan accompanying the last two local delivery plans projected NHS
Ayrshire & Arran having a £13.2 million deficit in 2016/2017 and in 2017/2018. In each
of these years, the majority of the funding uplift fo the Board (two thirds in 2016/2017
and almost three quarters in 2017/2018) was earmarked for social care.

The 2016/2017 efficiency savings required to balance cost pressures were £38.2
million (equating to 5.75%). The Board agreed a cash releasing efficiency savings
target of £25 million for 2016/2017 and tasked the Board’s senior management team
to bring forward a transformational change improvement programme to identify
savings to address the £13.2 million recurring deficit, and to address the medium term
sustainability of services.

Staffing and drugs costs accounts for about three quarters of spend against the Board
revenue resource limit. Staffing costs (including agency) rose by 14.4% between
2013/2014 and 2017/2018, with 2% of the increase in 2016/2017 being due to a
national insurance contribution increase as a result of the move to a state single
pension. Medicines costs rose by over 25% between 2012/2013 and 2017/2018,
mainly in hospital and new drugs costs.

The financial pressures in the system fall into three main areas:
¢ medical and nursing workforce;
¢ unscheduled care; and
¢ medicines.

Medical workforce challenges have seen spend on agency doctors double from
around £4 million to over £8 million as shown in the graph below:
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This is as a result of increasing medical vacancies and, as the cost of an agency
doctor averages over twice the budget for the vacant post, a £56 million cost pressure
arises. The use of locum doctors is a risk based decision and is always informed by
the need to keep services safe for the citizens across Ayrshire. Redesigning services
and using different skills is one way that we have sought to mitigate these issues.
However, the availability of medical staff is unlikely to improve significantly in the
medium term therefore changes to the skill mix requirement of role, or service
redesign will be required to mitigate where possible. In 2017/2018, the agency




medical spend reduced by 10% to £8.6 million, however efforts will continue to reduce
this cost.

Nurse agency spend had increased as shown in the graph below to over to £3 million
in 2016/2017. Additional nursing staff have been recruited in response fo the nursing
workforce tools and this has resulted in agency spend reducing in 2017/2018 to £1.9
million with further reductions planned for 2018/2019.
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The combination of unscheduled care demand, and delays in transferring patients to
home or a social care setting, manifests in the use of an additional 100 beds across
the acute hospitals. These beds were not planned or funded and the overspend in
nursing alone to staff these beds was £6.3 million in 2017/2018.

In relation to medicines, volume expressed as number of items prescribed remains
within the expected range however the financial challenge is driven by increasing cost
per item. The expected cost per item on a primary care prescription was expected to
be £10.16 in 2017/2018 however the average cost per item for the year was over
£10.50. The graph below shows that hospital and new drug costs have increased by
over 50% since 2012/2013.
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2. Performance Analysis

Financial performance and position

Limit as set by Variance
SGHSCD Actual Quiturn  (over)/Under

£000 £000 £000

1 Core Revenue Resource Limit 779,684 779,611 173
Non-core Revenue Rasource Limit 34,729 34,729 0
Total Revenue Resource Limits 814,413 814,240 173

2 Core Capital Resource Limit: 8,566 8,566 0
Non-core Capital Resource Limit 0 0 0
Total Capital Resource Limits 8,566 8,566 0
3 Cash Requirement 834,560 834,560 0
Memorandum for in year outturn £000
Reported Surplus in 2017/2018 173
Approved Carry-forward surpius from previous from previous financial year 137
Surplus against in year total Revenue Resource Limit 36

The accounts have been prepared under an accounts direction and on a going concern
basis. As detailed in the Chief Executive summary above, the deficit budget of £13.2
million set for 2017/2018 and the additional nursing costs associated with 100 additional
funded unscheduled care beds open during 2017/2018 were the main reasons for the
requirement for £23 million of financial brokerage requested and secured from Scottish
Government. Provision of brokerage is dedicated on a realistic plan to return to
financial sustainability with the Board's commitment to achieve this through the
Transformational Change Improvement Plan has been put in place. The 2018/2019
draft budget is not balanced and the Board is in discussion with Scottish Government
about financial brokerage requirements for 2018/2019. Scottish Government have
agreed that brokerage received in 2017/2018 will not be repayable until the Board is in
financial balance.

QOutstanding Liabilities
Current and non-current liabilities are presented in the Balance Sheet in the financial
statements and include liabilities outstanding in relation to Private Finance Initiative

contracts.
Public Finance Initiative/Public Private Partnerships

Avyrshire Maternity Unit (AMU)

The AMU is situated within the grounds of University Hospital Crosshouse, Kilmarnock
and provides obstetric in-patient, neonatal, day case and specialist outpatient facilities
for women and babies of Ayrshire and Arran. The capital value of the project was




£19.5 million, which is now on balance sheet under IFRS. The contract with Ayrshire
Hospitals Limited (AHL) commenced on 1 July 2006 and runs for 30 years to 30 June
2036. At the end of the contract period the building will transfer, free of charge to the
Board from the PF! Project Company. The unitary charge paid in 2017/2018 was
£2.41 million.

East Ayrshire Community Hospital (EACH)

Situated in Cumnock, EACH provides inpatient services to frail elderly, elderly with
mental illness and GP acute. It also provides day facilities to frail elderly and elderly
mentally ill, and outpatient services to the local area. The contract with HBG
Construction Scotland Limited runs for 25 years to August 2025. At the end of the
contract term, the Board has the option to acquire the building at a market valuation
price from the PF| Project Company Special Purpose Vehicle. The unitary charge paid
in 2017/2018 was £3.53 million.

Woodland View

The new mental health and community hospital in frvine was built under the non-profit
distributing model at a cost of around £46.6 million. The facility has 206 inpatient
bedrooms and was built by Balfour Beatty construction. The contract with Woodland
View Project Co Ltd is for a period of 25 years from April 2016, at the end of which the
building transfers free of charge to the Board. The unitary charge paid in 2017/2018
was £4.94 million.

Details of all PF! type contracts are provided in Note 18 of the financial statements.

Provisions

Note 13a to the accounts shows a provision for around £92 million in respect of clinical

and medical legal claims against the Board and participation in the Clinical Negligence

and other Risks Indemnity Scheme (CNORIS). In addition, note 14 shows a contingent
liability for clinical and medical compensation.

Across NHS Scotland there is a risk sharing pool for clinical and non-clinical claims
called CNORIS. This means that each Board meets a share of any settlements in the
year (which nationally has been around £45-50 million per annum) and the Board with
the claim is liable for the first £25,000 as an “excess”. The accounts show in note 13a
the estimated future liability for NHS Ayrshire & Arran claims (£52.28 million) and there
is a corresponding debtor due from CNORIS in note 9 in the amount of £48.7 million. In
addition, note 13a reflect NHS Ayrshire & Arran’s share of the national future CNORIS
fiability in the amount of £39.6 million.




Performance against Key Non-Financial Targets

The Board measures its progress toward achieving the Scottish Government’s nine
national health and wellbeing outcomes and the strategic improvement priority areas
identified in the Local Delivery Plan (LDP) using a suite of performance indicators. The
LDP gives detailed targets and trends for a number of key performance indicators
towards achieving these outcomes. The Board also measures its performance against
the financial targets set by the Scottish Government Health and Social Care
Directorate. Performance against the financial targets is monitored by the
management team and reported to the Board or Performance Committee on a monthly
basis and these are monitored quarterly by the relevant Governance committee.

As explained in more detail in the Governance Statement, the Board has a formal
system of risk identification and evaluation embedded throughout the organisation
which seeks to manage risk and uncertainty. The Audit committee reviews and
monitors all risks which are identified to it and produces an annual report. The Board
has identified a number of corporate risks which the Board is currently managing and
mitigating to ensure the achievement of the objectives of the LDP.

NHS Ayrshire and Arran is monitored by the Scottish Government against a number
of indicators known as the ‘L.ocal Delivery Plan Standards’. The LDP is effectively a
contract between the Scottish Government and the Health Board whereby each
Board routinely reports performance against trajectories which are mutually agreed.
Trajectories were set against the indicators where some revision was agreed in the
LDP for financial year 2017/2018. Qutcomes are then discussed at an Annual
Review meeting held between the Scottish Government and NHS Ayrshire & Arran
Health Board.

Performance Summary

Information has been provided on a tota! of 22 indicators (with number 12 and
13 having a sub-indicator each). The performance against these indicators
has been summarised in table 1 below, detailing a description of.

Indicator,

unit;

baseline performance,

latest performance (Actual and Planned) and
target detail.

The Performance scores are also shown in table 1 below. The key is as
follows:

GREEN Currently meeting or better than trajectory (plan)

AMBER Currently within 5% of trajectory (plan}

RED Currently outwith the acceptable control limit of
>5% of trajectory (plan)

10
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NHS Ayrshire & Arran has a Performance Governance Committee whose remit
includes providing assurance that systems and procedures are in place to monitor,
manage and improve overall performance.

For those indicators which were scored as Red (outwith >5% of trajectory) and
Amber (currently within 5% of trajectory), the following comment and remedial
action was provided by the service responsible:

LDP.3: 62-Day Cancer: Suspicion-of-Cancer Referrals (62 days)

Analysis: Latest data show a RED and WORSENING position with 86.1% of
patients as at March 2018 having been referred urgently with a suspicion of cancer.

Remedial Action: Breach analyses are completed for each patient and these are
sent to the General Manager and the Lead Clinician o ensure learning points are
identified and actioned.

There is no consistent trend across the cancer specialties and drops below target
tend to be as a result of specific issues with individual patient journeys including
diagnostic tests at regional centres.

LDP.4: Dementia Post Diagnostic Support

Analysis: Latest data for 2016/2017 shows a RED result of 92.93% of patients who
have been newly diagnosed with dementia having been offered a year's worth of
post diagnostic support, against a target of 100%.

Remedial Action: Data has only recently started to be reported and it is understood
that improvements will be made in the accuracy of data over the coming months.

LDP.5: 12 weeks Treatment Time Guarantee for Inpatient/Daycase treatment

Analysis: The latest data show a RED and WORSENING position whereby 74.3%
of inpatient and daycase patients waited less than 84 days for freatment at the end
of March 2018 against a target of 100%. During the winter months several hundred
orthopaedic elective operations had to be cancelled due to emergency demand.

Remedial Action: Close scrutiny continues to take place, as well as financial
support in recent months by the Scottish Government to help control local waiting
list management more effectively.

LDP.6: 18 weeks Referral to Treatment - Performance

Analysis: The most up to date data are showing a RED and IMPROVING position
as at March 2018 of 78.64% of combined admitted and non-admitted patient
pathways to be treated within 18 weeks of referral against a trajectory of 90%.

Remedial Action: Individual specialties continue to implement, monitor and report
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on their remedial action reports detailing their projected position and outcomes
which is monitored on a weekly basis at both Acute Hospital sites, chaired by the
Assistant Directors of Acute Services, and on a monthly basis by the Director of
Acute Services. A weekly update on the outpatient stage of treatment situation is
also provided to Scottish Government. It is believed that this is a thorough and
prudent monitoring system but until pressures are alleviated it is unlikely that resuits
will be reversed in the short term.

It is hoped that the improving position with outpatient stage of treatment
performance will produce a corresponding improvement in the 18 week RTT
performance.

LDP.7: New Outpatients: Maximum 12 weeks from Referral

Analysis: Most recent data shows performance as RED and IMPROVING as at
March 2018 at with 84.85% of patients having started treatment within 12 weeks of
referral, against a target of 95%.

Remedial Action: Individual specialties continue to implement, monitor and report
on their remedial action reports detailing their projected position and outcomes. This
is monitored on a weekly basis through an Access Group on both Acute Hospital
sites, chaired by the Assistant Directors of Acute Services, and on a monthly basis
by the Director of Acute Services. A weekly report of the outpatient situation is also
provided to Scottish Government. The Service continues in its endeavor to mitigate
under-performance through what is believed to be a thorough and prudent
monitoring system, but until pressures are alleviated it is unlikely there wilt be a
significant improvement in results in the short term.

LDP.11: Faster Access to Psychological Therapies — 18 weeks

Analysis: These data are showing an AMBER and slightly WORSENING position
of 86.91% of patients being seen within 18 weeks in March 2018, compared to
historically consistent RED results. This is based on ‘adjusted’ figures, i.e.
excluding periods of patient unavailability.

Remedial Action: A whole system review of psychological services has been
carried out, supported with additional Government funding and investment in
improving access to Psychological Therapies. This is to ensure compliance with
waiting times and improvement towards achieving the required LDP Standard. A
number of service improvement initiatives and test of change pilots have been
implemented with development of an action plan to ensure targeted improvement of
the delivery standard.

LDP.13: MRSA/MSSA Reduction (Rate)

Analysis: The published data for Q4 2017/2018 for SABs is a RED result at 0.27
which exceeds the target position of 0.24.

Remedial Action: There has been an increase in the number of cases with an
unknown point of entry. Further reviews are being carried out on the cases with an
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unknown point of entry to establish the reason for the increase. Renal services
undertake root cause analysis of all renal related SABs and the learning from these
are shared at muliti-disciplinary team meetings. Blood culture contaminants are not
confined to one specific area therefore targeted intervention is not possible.

LDP.16: Smoking Cessation

Analysis: These local data show a RED position of 349 successful quits after 12
weeks against a trajectory of 567 of people residing in the 40% most deprived
datazones in the NHS Board (i.e. two most deprived local quintiles}, as at January
2018. As these data relate to all successful quits made throughout the month of
January 2018, reporting is therefore subject to a timelag delay of 3 months.

Remedial Action: An information campaign has been implemented to increase
awareness of the service which is expected to result in a rise in people having still
successfully refrained from smoking after 12 weeks. It should be noted however
that there is an ever reducing section of the public who are cigarette smokers and
therefore it will become increasingly difficult to achieve quits, particularly with an
increased target.

LDP.18: Advance Booking — GP

Analysis: Nationally published data for this indicator showed a slight worsening in
trend in performance, from 76.8% of patients in 2013/14 being able to book in
advance to 76.4% in 2015/2016 against a target of 90%, therefore a RED and
WORSENING position. The Scottish average for 2015/2016 was 76.4%. The figures
for this target are taken from GP Access Survey which is conducted every two
years.

Remedial Action: The performance against this target will be reviewed again when
the Patient Experience Survey is repeated. it should be noted that the Quality and
Outcomes Framework (QOF) points allocated to performance against these targets
in previous years have been allocated to new QOF measures aimed at reducing
emergency admissions; demand; and prescribing costs. There is a risk, therefore,
that there are no levers available to the Board to incentivise Practices towards
meeting these targets, unless there is a major breakdown of service resulting in
patients not being able to access services to meet identified need - which would
constitute a breach of contract.

LDP.19: Sickness Absence

Analysis: The cumulative year to date result is 5.26%, against the full year average
target of 4%. The local monthly data shows a RED and IMPROVING position from a
revised result of 5.4% in February 2018 to 4.89% in March 2018 which means that
the end of year target has not been reached.

Remedial Action: The following observations have been identified and further
actions to remedy the situation are being undertaken:

« Monthly hotspot reports continue to be produced with focused resource within
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those areas identified in order to audit processes and test understanding of
the application of the policy;

o Local action plans are put in place to address any issues identified above;
Monthly training sessions scheduled throughout the year;
Promoting Attendance and Wellbeing training also continues to be a focus of
the Line Managers Development Programme; and

¢ Monthly case management meetings with Occupational Health are
undertaken to ensure consistency in the support being offered to staff absent
on a long term basis.

LDP.20: A&E Waits to be a Maximum of 4 hours

Analysis: These local data are showing an AMBER and WORSENING position
from 93.59% in February 2018 to 90.54% in March 2018, against a target of 95%.

Remedial Action: Ayr combined assessment unit opened in June 2017 following
the opening of Crosshouse a year earlier. These have reduced A&E attendances at
both sites. Winter pressures have places great strain on both A&E departments
causing a dip in performance against the four hour target.

Management teams at both Crosshouse and Ayr continue to seek sustained
improvements. Plans are in place and further patient flow initiatives are being
progressed.

LDP.21: Financial Performance

Analysis: The end of year position shows the Board being in a deficit of
£22 900,000 against a target deficit of £13,200,000, which is therefore a RED result.

Remedial Action: The reasons for the increased overspend were having over 100
unfunded unscheduled care beds open and unachieved cash releasing efficiency
savings. There are plans to close the unfunded beds by September 2018 and to
carry-forward and address unachieved savings, however a deficit in 2018/2019 is
still projected.

LDP.22: Cash Efficiencies

Analysis: The end of year position shows that £19,951,000 of cash releasing
efficiency savings were achieved against a target of £24,800,000, which gives a
RED result.

Remedial Action: Most of the unachieved cash releasing efficiency savings was in

Acute and Mental Heaith services. The unachieved cash releasing efficiency
savings will be carried forward into 2018/2019 and savings sought to address them.
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Payment policy

The Scottish Government is committed to supporting businesses by paying bills more
quickly. The intention is to achieve payment of all undisputed invoices within 10
working days, across all public bodies. The target has been communicated to all
non-departmental public bodies, who are working towards the accelerated payment
target of 10 working days.

Prior to this, the Health Board did endeavour to comply with the principles of The
Better Payment Practice Code (http://www.payontime.co.uk/) by processing suppliers’
invoices for payment without unnecessary delay and by settling them in a timely
manner.

e In2017/2018, average credit taken was 9 days from date invoice received.
(2016/2017 was 8 days from invoice date).

s In2017/2018, the Health Board paid 93% by volume and 95% by value of non-
NHS suppliers within 30 days of the invoice being received, (compared to 94%
and 95% in 2016/2017).

» Based on the date of invoices being received, 85% by volume and 87% by value
were paid within 10 days in 2017/2018 (compared to 86% and 87% in 2016/2017).

Pension Liabilities

The accounting policy note for pensions is provided in Note 1 and disclosure of the
costs is shown within Note 19 and the Remuneration Repoit. The NHS pension
scheme is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme therefore future
liabilities are not on the balance sheet. In 2017/2018, the Board employer
contribution was 14.9% of relevant pay costs and amounted to £41.65 million.

Sustainability and Environmental reporting

The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 set outs measures adopted by the Scottish
Government to reduce emissions in Scotland by at least 80% by 2050. in 2015, an
Order was introduced requiring all designated Major Players (of which NHS Ayrshire
& Arran is one) to submit an annual report to the Sustainable Scotland Network
detailing compliance with the climate change duties imposed by the Act. The
information returned by the Board is compiled into a national analysis report,
published annually and superseding the prior requirement for public bodies to publish
individual sustainability reports.

Further information on the Act, along with copies of prior year national reports, can be
found at the following resource: hitp://www keepscotlandbeautiful.ora/sustainability-
climate-change/sustainable-scotland-network/climate-change-reporting/

The statement of the accounting policies which have been adopted is shown at
Note 1.




B. ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT

Corporate Governance Report
a) The Directors’ Report

Naming convention
NHS Ayrshire & Arran is the common name for Ayrshire and Arran Health Board.

Date of Issue
Financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Health Board on
25 June 2018.

Appointment of auditors

The Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 places personal
responsibility on the Auditor General for Scotland to decide who is to undertake the
audit of each health body in Scotland. The Auditor General appointed Deloitte LLP to
undertake the audit of Ayrshire and Arran Health Board. The general duties of the
auditors of health bodies, including their statutory duties, are set out in the Code of Audit
Practice issued by Audit Scotland and approved by the Auditor General.

Board membership

Under the terms of the Scottish Health Plan, the Health Board is a board of governance
whose membership will be conditioned by the functions of the Board. Members of
Health Boards are selected on the basis of their position or the particular expertise
which enables them to contribute to the decision making process at a strategic level.

The Health Board has collective responsibility for the performance of the local NHS
system as a whole, and reflects the partnership approach, which is essential fo
improving health and heaith care.

Dr M Cheyne, Chairman

Mr J Burns, Chief Executive

Mrs M Anderson, Non-Executive Director

Prof H Borland, Nurse Director

Mrs L Bowie, Non-Executive Director (vice Chair)

Councillor L Brennan-Whitefield (from 7 June 2017)
Councillor J Cullinane (from 7 June 2017)

Mr S Donnelly, Employee Director

Councillor W Gibson, Non-Executive Director (until 30 April 2017}
Ms C Gilmore, Non-Executive Director

Dr A Graham, Medical Director

Councillor H Hunter, Non-Executive Director {until 30 April 2017)
Mr D Lindsay, Director of Finance

Mr R Martin, Non-Executive Director

Dr J McKay, Non-Executive Director

Mr S McKenzie, Non-Executive Director {(until 31 March 2018)
Mr A McKie, Non-Executive Director

Councillor D Reid, Non-Executive Director

(until 30 April 2017 — reappointed 7 June 2017}

Miss L Tennant, Non-Executive Director

Mr | Welsh, Non-Executive Director
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The Statement of Board Members’ responsibilities

Under the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978, the Health Board is required to
prepare accounts in accordance with the directions of Scottish Ministers which require
that those accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Health Board as
at 31 March 2018 and of its operating costs for the year then ended. In preparing these
accounts the Directors are required to:

« Apply on a consistent basis the accounting policies and standards
approved for the NHS Scotland by Scottish Ministers;

« Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« State where applicable accounting standards as set out in the Financial
Reporting Manual have not been followed where the effect of the
departure is material; and

« Prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Board will continue to operate.

The Health Board members are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records
are maintained which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Board and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the
National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and the requirements of the Scottish
Ministers. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board and
hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board members confirm they have discharged the above responsibilities during the
financial year and in preparing the accounts.

Board Members’ and Senior Managers’ Interests

Details of any interests of board members, senior managers and other senior staff in
contracts or potential contractors with the Health Board as required by {AS 24 are
disclosed in note 25. A register of interests, which includes details of company
directorships or other significant interests held by Board members that may conflict with
their management responsibilities, is available by contacting Ayrshire & Arran Health
Board, Eglinton House, Ailsa Hospital, Dalmellington Road, Ayr KA6 6AB, or can be
accessed on the Board’s website at: http://www.nhsaaa.net/about-us/how-we-make-
decisions/ayrshire-and-arran-nhs-board/.

All Directors appointed by the Cabinet Secretary (shown in the remuneration report) are
also Trustees of the Ayrshire and Arran Endowments, which are consolidated into these
accounts. Most of the Non-Executive board members also sit on one of the three
Integration Joint Boards whose accounts are also consolidated.

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions
Director's have no third party indemnity provisions.

Remuneration for non-audit work
No remuneration was paid to external auditors in respect of any non-audit work carried
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out on behalf of Ayrshire and Arran Health Board.

Value of Land
Land is shown in the balance sheet af market value.

Remote Contingent Liabilities
Note 14 to the accounts discloses the value of contingency liabilities with the significant
one related to CNORIS which is explained in note 13.

Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010

Sections 31 and 32 of the Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010 imposed duties
on the Scottish Government and listed public bodies to publish information on
expenditure and certain other matters as soon as is reasonably practicable after the end
of each financial year.

This information is available on our website at the following link Public Services Reform
(Scotland) Act 2010.

Trade Union Regulations

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 came into
force on 1 April 2017. The reguiations place a legislative requirement on relevant public
sector.employers to collate and publish, on an annual basis, a range of data on the
amount and cost of facility time within their organisation. The data is required to be
published on a website maintained by or on behalf of the employer before 31st July
each year. We intend to publish this data at the following link: Public Services Reform
(Scotland) Act 2010.

Requirements for the data to be disclosed within the annual report and accounts was
unclear at the time of issue. The Cabinet Office published supporting guidance on

2 June 2018 which has clarified the data should be disclosed. Due to the timing of this
confirmation, we were unable to collate refiable data to publish within the 2017/2018
annual report and accounts therefore we will publish from 2018/2019 onwards.

Personal data related incidents reported to the Information Commissioner
NHS Ayrshire & Arran did not report any information security breaches to the
Information Commissioner's Office in 2017/2018.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm
that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Board’s auditors are unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he / she
ought reasonably to have taken as a director to make himself / herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Board's auditors are aware of that
information.
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b) The Statement of Accountable Officers’ responsibilities

Under Section 15 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act, 2000, The
Principal Accountable Officer (PAQ) of the Scottish Government has appointed me as
Accountable Officer of Ayrshire and Arran Health Board.

This designation carries with it, responsibility for:

» The propriety and regularity of financial transactions under my control;

) The economical, efficient and effective use of resources placed at the Board’s
disposal; and

. Safeguarding the assets of the Board.

In preparing the Accounts | am required to comply with the requirements of the
Government’s Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:

. Observe the accounts direction issued by the Scottish Ministers including the
relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis;

. Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

. Stafe whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government’s
Financial Reporting Manual have been followed and disclose and explain any
material departures; and

o Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis.

| confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole are fair, balanced and
reasonable.

| am responsible for ensuring proper records are maintained and that the Accounts are
prepared under the principles and in the format directed by Scottish Ministers. To the
best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged my responsibilities as
accountable officer as intimated in the Departmental Accountable Officers letter to me.
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c) The Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | am responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective
system of internal control that supports compliance with the organisation’s policies and
promotes achievement of the organisation’s aims and objectives including those set by
Scottish Ministers. In addition, | am responsible for safeguarding the public funds and
assets assigned to the organisation.

Purpose of Internal Control

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify,
prioritise and manage the principal risks facing the organisation. The system aims to
evaluate the nature and extent of risks and manage risks efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve the organisation’s aims and objectives. As such, it can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The process within the organisation accords with guidance from Scottish Ministers in the
Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) and supplementary NHS guidance, and has
been in place for the year up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

The SPFM is issued by Scottish Ministers to provide guidance to the Scottish
Government and other relevant bodies on the proper handling and reporting of public
funds. The SPFM sets out the relevant statutory, parliamentary and administrative
requirements, emphasises the need for efficiency, effectiveness and economy and
promotes good practice and high standards of propriety. The Board has complied with
the SPFM during 2017/2018.

Governance Framework of the Board

During financial year 2012/2013, the Chairman and Chief Executive agreed to review the
Board’s governance arrangements in order to ensure a focus of continuous improvement
and to strengthen the arrangements in place for NHS Ayrshire & Arran. This work
resulted in a refreshed Governance Framework being presented and approved at the
Board meeting held on 5 December 2012. These arrangements are kept under review to
ensure that they remain fit for purpose. The Governance Framework comprises the
following committees:

Audit Committee;

Healthcare Governance Commiitee;
Information Governance Committee;
Performance Governance Committee; and
Staff Governance Committee.

These committees have operated throughout 2017/2018 and the Board has considered
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and discussed the annual report for 2017/2018 produced by each of these committees.
The Board is satisfied that the Governance Committees have fulfilled their remit.

As part of the continuous review of governance arrangements, the Board approved at its
meeting on 25 August 2014 the establishment of an Integrated Governance Committee
comprising the chairs of each of the above governance committees and is chaired by the
Board Chair and attended by the lead executive director for each of these areas. This
group allows an overview and coordination of governance work across all committees
such as the internal audit programme and corporate risk register.

The Board also carries out its scrutiny role by receiving the following reports at every
meeting:

Healthcare associated infection;

Scottish Patient Safety Programme updates;
patient experience story;

planned care;

unscheduled care performance; and
financial performance.

The function of the Board and its committees during the year was considered effective
due to it having an appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge, to challenge and scrutinise the work of the executive team within NHS
Ayrshire & Arran. New Board members received induction and during the year there
were Board Workshops for all Board members to discuss particular topics in greater
detail. At the October 2017 annual Board development session, a survey on Board
effectiveness was discussed to identify opportunities for improvement.

The Board reviews its Code of Corporate Governance annually, which brings all aspects
of Corporate Governance (including Standing Orders, Standing Financial instructions
and Scheme of Delegation) into a single code. The revisions to the Code were agreed
by the Health Board at its meeting in June 2017. A process is in place to assign
government circulars and directives to a lead director and follow up actions taken. This
ensures compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Board has in place a
Whistle Blowing Policy, which was updated and approved by the Board on

12 December 2016. This policy provides a protective means to raise concerns regarding
the delivery of care, the Health and Safety of employees and visitors or the integrity of
the organisation without fear of victimisation.

On the 2 April 2015 three Integration Joint Boards were each established as a body
corporate by order of the Scottish ministers as part of the establishment of the framework
for the integration of health and social care in Scotland under the Public Bodies (Joint
Working) (Scotland) Act 2014. The Integration Joint Boards have the responsibility for
providing social care and defined health care for the residents of Ayrshire and Arran.
Governance arrangements have been established to ensure that they are aligned with
the Board’s governance arrangements.

The Board meets every two months and receives timely, comprehensive and relevant

information for discussion and approval. The Board has positive relationships with
stakeholders and is a key participant within community planning arrangements across
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the three councils.

A Ministerial Annual Review took place during 2017/2018. In the follow-up letter from the
Cabinet Secretary, the Board was commended for performance in various areas
however, work continues around healthcare acquired infections, accident and
emergency four-hour wait and the treatment time guarantee targets, which remain
challenging to achieve.

Review of Adequacy and Effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | am responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the system of internal control. My review is informed by:

« Discussions with and letters of assurance from Directors who are responsible for
developing, implementing and maintaining internal controls across their areas;

¢ minutes and annual reports from Governance Committees;

s the work of the internal auditors who submit to the Audit Committee regular
reports which include their independent and objective opinion on the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes together with
recommendations for improvement;

e comments by the external auditors in their management letters and other reports;

« national reports such as Healthcare Improvement Scotland reviews.

The Board receives minutes from each Governance Committee and receives an annuai
report from each committee to confirm that their remit has been fulfilled. Where
necessary a committee can escalate issues for Board scrutiny. No issues were escalated
in 2017/2018.

In accordance with the principles of best value, the Board aims to foster a cuiture of
continuous improvement. As part of this, Directorates are encouraged to review, identify
and improve the efficient and effective use of resources. Business cases and Board
papers need to demonstrate that consideration has been given to the Best Value
characteristics published in the 2011 Best Value Guidance to Accountable Officers. |
can confirm that arrangements have been made to secure best value as set out in the
SPFM.

Each year the Board’s internal auditors design their audit programme to review the
highest risk areas within the Board strategic risk register. The internal audit programme
is approved by the Audit Committee and each report produced by internal audit is
considered by the Audit Committee, but in addition is referred to the most relevant
governance committee (Staff, Healthcare, Information, Performance) for detailed
scrutiny.

The internal audit programme gives assurance on a broad range of internal controls and
in addition a focused review on key financial controls covers the core financial systems
on a two-year cyclical basis and for the last four years, the resulting report has shown a
low risk report classification. The internal audit annual report for 2017/2018 had an
opinion that controls were “generally satisfactory with some improvements required”.

The Financial Management Report is discussed at each Board meeting, which includes
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efficiency measures. During the year, overspends on acute nurse staffing budgets were
mainly as a result of beds having to be opened to meet unscheduled care demand that
was not part of the Revenue Plan. This was the main reason for the deficit in 2017/2018
increasing from £13.2 million to nearly £23 million. A request was made to Scottish
Government for brokerage of £23 million which was agreed.

Risk Assessment

NHSScotland bodies are subject to the requirements of the SPFM and must operate a
risk management strategy in accordance with relevant guidance issued by Scottish
Ministers. The general principles for a successful risk management strategy are set out
in the SPFM.

NHS Ayrshire & Arran is committed to continuous development and improvement,
developing systems in response to any relevant reviews and developments in best
practice. In 2016/2017 the Board reviewed the Risk Management Strategy, Risk
Appetite Statement, Adverse Events Policy and the Safety Action Notice Policy. The
Risk Management Committee ensures that these matters are kept under review.
There are four strategic risks which are rated as “very high risk”.

Lack of medical staff;

failure to recruit to GP vacancies;

primary Care sustainability; and

inability to release sufficient efficiency savings to balance the budget.

BN

To treat the risks related to medical staffing, the Medical Workforce Scrutiny Group
reviews medical workforce gaps. Each vacancy is risk assessed and agency doctors are
engaged to maintain safe services to our patients. Where there is no realistic prospect
of recruiting to a substantive post, service redesign is considered including different skill
mix or working with other Boards. In 2016/2017 and 2017/2018, the fack of junior
doctors has been mitigated by the funding and recruitment of thirteen additional clinical
development/teaching fellows. The expenditure on medical agency reduced from £9.5
million in 2016/2017 to £8.6 million in 2017/2018.

Failure to recruit to GP vacancies contributes to the Board challenge around primary
care sustainability. During 2017/2018 the Board managed three practices where the
contract had been ‘handed back’ and attempts to attract new partners had been
unsuccessful. These practices were suppotted with additional pharmacy, physiotherapy
and mental health staff and locum GPs covered the medical needs to patients. This
resulted in a significant additional cost to the Board. The new GP contract agreed
nationally in early 2018 will make these practices more attractive and all practices in
Ayrshire and Arran will be supported with pharmacist, psychology and other new
specialist staff funded through the Primary Care Improvement Fund which rises
nationally from £45.75 million in 2018/2019 to £55 million in 2019/2020, £110 million in
2020/2021 and £155 million in 2021/2022.

Achieving financial balance is identified in the strategic risk register as very high risk. To
treat the risk a Transformational Change Improvement Plan was established alongside
the cash releasing efficiency plan. The Transformational Change improvement Plan
identified eight strategic service change programmes, eight best value initiatives and
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collaborative working with a range of other Health Boards. This plan is managed through
the Board's Programme Management Office and scrutinised by the Transformation
Leadership Group chaired by the Board’s Vice Chair. During 2017/2018, in discussion
with Health and Social Care Management Board (HSCMB) Directors NHS Ayrshire and
Arran agreed to work with an external partner to review the Board’s approach to
efficiency and transformation. Pricewaterhouse Coopers were appointed and carried out
a diagnostic review. Further discussion with HSCMB Directors in early 2018 offered
tailored support to the Board and an Improvement Director was engaged by the Board.

The strategic risk register also contains eleven high risks in the following areas:

[T security resource;

transformational change programme (2);
promoting attendance;

personal development review;

statutory management of the estate;

statutory management of occupational road risk;
delivery of the approved capital plan;

achieving the legal treatment time guarantee,
exposure to malware via e-mail;

information governance.

All of these are being actively managed by the relevant risk owner and a quarterly report
on relevant risks is taken to each governance committee of the Board.

Pisclosures

In 2017/2018, out of 20,328 planned day cases and inpatients seen, some 2,829
patients were treated outwith the 12-week treatment time guarantee. This means that
86.1% of patients requiring an operation were admitted within 12 weeks of their
outpatient appointment.

Following a Deanery quality management review of junior doctor training General
Medicine at University Hospital Ayr was placed in the General Medical Council's
enhanced monitoring regime.

In addition, over this year two unannounced OPAH inspections were carried out, one at
University Hospital Crosshouse between 12-14th September 2017 (which identified five
areas of good practice and nine areas for improvement) and the other at Ayrshire Central
Hospital between 14-15th February 2018 (which resulted in four requirements and one
recommendation). Action plans and reporting arrangements are in place to ensure
improvements identified are fully completed.

Over 2016/2017 there was concern raised through Scottish Government about the
"significant event" review process in our Maternity Services, as not thought to be in line
with the Board's guidance. This was disclosed in the Governance Statement last year.
The process adopted in Maternity Services was reviewed over 2017 by a Team brought
together by Health Improvement Scotland (HIS). The recommendations of this review
have been subject to improvements over 2017/2018 and formally reported and
monitored through the delivery of three reports (to date) to HIS. Further investment of
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£0.4 million for a quality team in maternity team was made in early 2017/2018.

In 2016/2017, a number of instances of staff employed by the Board allegedly having
accepted hospitality from suppliers were brought to the Board’s attention by Counter
Fraud Services (CFS). These matters were investigated and appropriate action taken.
Internal audit carried out a review of gifts and hospitality as part of the 2017/2018 infernal
audit programme which had a risk classification of medium and highlighted 6
recommendations. An action plan was agreed to address the recommendations.

An internal audit review of Information Technology disaster recovery preparations had
one high risk recommendation related to assessing the operational disruption risk at
executive level of either testing or not testing the disaster recovery procedures. The
action plan for this has a target date of 31 August 2018.

Subject to the above, during the 2017/2018 financial year, no significant control
weaknesses or issues have arisen, and no significant failures have arisen in the
expected standards for good governance, risk management and control.

In accordance with |IAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, the
Financial Statements consolidate the Ayrshire and Arran Health Board Endowment Fund
and the accounts of the three Integration Joint Boards (1JBs). This statement reflects
any relevant disclosure in respect of these Endowment accounts. Assurance has been
received from the Endowment Committee and the Chief Officers of the Health and Social
Care Partnerships as well as the fact that Endowment Funds and |JB accounts are
subject to audit.
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Remuneration and Staff Report
Remuneration Report
Board members’ and senior employees’ remuneration

The Health Board has a Remuneration Committee, which is a sub-committee of the
Staff Governance Committee. Membership of the sub-committee consists of Non-
Executive Board members including the Employee Director. The Chair of the Board is
the Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee membership is as follows:-

Dr Martin Cheyne, Chair

Counciltor William Gibson (until 30 April 2017)
Councillor Joe Cullinane (from 15 August 2017)
Mr Stewart Donnelly

Mr Stephen McKenzie {until 22 March 2018)

The committee met two times during 2017/2018. The committee is responsible for
providing assurance to the Board regarding the probity and corporate governance
aspects of the appointment, appraisal and remuneration of those covered by Executive
Pay Arrangements and to monitor terms and conditions of employment in accordance
with central direction.

Directors - Remuneration

Remuneration of the Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Directors and Senior
Managers is determined in line with directions issued by the Scottish Government
Health and Social Care Directorates (SGHSCD). All posts at this level are subject to
rigorous job evaluation arrangements by the National Evaluation Committee and the pay
scales applied reflect the outcomes of these processes. All extant policy guidance
issued by the SGHSCD has been appropriately applied and agreed by the
Remuneration Committee.

Performance Appraisal

Performance appraisals, for those covered by Executive Pay Arrangements, are carried
out in line with the guidance from the National Performance Management Committee
and overseen by the Remuneration Committee. The Committee agrees the individual
in-year objectives of the Board’s Executive Directors and Directors and approves their
annual performance assessments each year. Annual pay rises, for those covered by
Executive Pay Arrangements, are dependent on achieving specified levels of
performance, in line with National agreement.
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Payments to Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors’

The following tables provide a breakdown of Non-Executive Directors’ and
Executive Directors’ remuneration 2017/2018.

Remuneration {satary, beaefits in kind and pensions) 2017 -18

Single total figure of }emuneraﬁon

Board Members Directors’ Bonus Benefits in Total {i} Pension Yotal
Grosg Salary | Payments § &nd (£000) | Faralpgsin Benefits Remuperation

{Bands of {Bands of Yaar (Bands {£o00) {Bands of
£5,000) £5,000} of £5,000} £5,000}
2017/18 007/18 | 2017/18 | 2017/18 1718 201718

Executive

Mr § Buens, Chief Execwtive 135-140 ] 0.0 135 - 340 0 335 =140

Mr O Lindsay, Directer of finance 105-110 [ 105 -110 115-130

DrAGraham, MediclBirector TR Aep-165 [ 360165

Prafessar, H Borfand, Nutse Directar T gs-op 0 " ps-s0 !

Non-exacutive e " .

Or M Cheyne, Ctisirman 30-35 0 0.9 30-33 ]

Wts L Bowie i - 3% ] [oR:] 10-1% o

s M Aadersor 4-10 g o X} 5-10 4]

Counclior L Brennan-Whitefield [from 7 June 2017} 5-1¢ 9 0.9 5-10 5]

Counciiler J Cullinane (from 7 june 2057} 5-10 g 0d 5-10 0

(1 Mr S Donnelly 55 . 60 a 15 5560 3

Councitlar W Gibyon [feft 30 April 2017) G-5 q 0.4 0-5 a

Ms C Gilmara 1615 [ 0.0 10-15 [

Countilor K iunter {lafy 30 April 2017 5.5 o oo | 9-8 Q

Mr R Martin Q1% ] o 0-35 9

[Hi) Dr ] MeKay 65 -70 4] 4.1 70-75 Z

M 5 McKenzie (Joft 31 March 7018} 5-10 s} 0.0 5-10 ]

Mir A MeKie 10-1% <] 8.0 10-15 ]

Coungllior B Reld [f=ft 30 April 2017, from 7 June 2017} 5-10 g 2.0 3-10 a

Misst Tennant 5-10 ] 4.0 5-10 ¢}

Melwelsh o 19-35 o

(i} The above co!umnforpen!]u;ibal{eﬁﬁs;s net o eraploye P’E‘r;

{ii) Mr 5 Donnelly is the employee diractor, and EA5 - 50k of his salery, & benefits in kind and &l pension benefits ace in respect of nen-Board dutfes.
{iR) [r § McKay Is & stakeholder director for the Asea Chinical Forum, and €55 - 80k of hor salary, all banefits in kind and all pansion benefits are in respect of nen-Board duties,

Penslon Benefits

Board Meinbats ) “Accrued  JAccrued lump
peasion at sum et Cash {iv} Cash
pension age | pentlon age | RealIncredse | Reabincronse | Equivatent £quivalent
asat asat In penslon at | fa lump sum | Yransfer Valua | Transfer Valve | Real
31/05/2018 | 31/03/2018 ; pension age | at pension {CETVIst {CETV) At Increase
{Bands of (Bends of {Bandsof [age (Bandsof| 3170372017 31/03/2018 : InCETV
) £5,000) £50000 1 Ex500) | £2,500} £000 £000 £000
My Burns, Chief £ o .6 17175 I 1,252 1363 5
¢ I Lindsay, Direstor of Einanes -5 #5-80 G-25 9 §17 645 27
Dr A Graham, Medicat Director 5065 185 - 180 §-25 0-2.3 5,232 1302 a5
Professar. B Borland, Nuraa Director 35-40 140 - 105 8-25 § 0-25 653 00 47
Mr & Donnelly, Nen-axecutive Director 023 65 70 925 0-2% 475 497 i7
DrJ MicKay, Har exeoutive Diréctor 3025 - 75 B-25 0-25 508 529 16

{iv) The seal discount rate uzed to evaluate CETV has been as advised by the UK Gavernment Actuaries Bepartrent.
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The following tables provide a breakdown of Non-Executive Directors’ and Executive
Directors’ remuneration 2016/2017;

{safary, benefits in kind and pensions) 2016 -17

[singte total figure of remuneration

Board Members Directors’ Banus Benefits in Total [8) Pension Totak
Gross Salary | Payments | kind (E'000} | Earningsin Benefits Remuneration
[Bands of {Bands of Year {Bands {£'000) (Bands af
£5,000) £5,000} af £5,000) £5,000)
2016/17 2086/17 201617 216/17 2016/17 2016/17
[Executive
Mr | Burns, Chief Executive 135-140 0 0.0 135- 140 24 160 - 165
Mr D Lindsay, Director of Finance 105- 110 1] 21 105- 110 36 140 - 145
Dr A Graham, Medical Director 160 - 165 0 4.5 165 -170 i6 180 - 185
Dr £ Davidson, Director of Public Health (left 31 March 2017) 170-175 0 4.0 170175 48 320 - 225
Professor. H Boriand, Nurse Director 85-90 0 4.0 85-90 5% 145 - 150
N vy
Dr M Cheyne, Chairman 30-35 0 0.0 30-35 1] 30-35
Dr K Darweit, {left 30 lune 2016) Q-5 [1] 0.0 Q-5 [4] 0-5
Mrs L Bowie 5-30 0 0.0 5-10 0 5-10
Mrs M Anderson {from 1 August 2016] 5-10 0 00 5-10 0 5-10
(i) Mr S Donnelly 55 - 60 0 1.9 S5-60 10 £5-70
Countillor W Glbson 5-16 0 0.0 5-10 a 5-10
s C Glimare 5-10 1] 0.0 5-1D 2] 5-10
Cauncillor H Hunter 5-30 a 0.0 5-10 a 5-10
Mr R Martin 5-1¢ Q 0.0 5-10 4] 5-10
{ifi) Dr | MicKay 65-70 Q 3.6 70-75 g 75-80
Mr § McKenzie 5-10 [ 0.0 5-10 o] 5-10
Mr A MicKia 5-10 [ 0.0 5-10 i) 5-10
ouncillar & Reid 5-10 Q 0.0 5-10 Q 5-30
Miss L Tennant 5-10 0 0.0 5-10 0 5-10
Mr | Walsh 5-10 0 0.0 5-10 0 5-10

{i) The above column for pension benefits is net of employze pensian contributions to sheir pensions wivereas the pension benefits below include employze contributions.
{ii} Mr S Donnelly is the employee director, and £45 - 50k of his salary, sll benefits In kind and all pansion benefits are in respect of non-Board duties.
[iii) Dr 1 McKay is a stakeholder director for the Area Clinical Farum, and £55 - 60k of her salary, ali benefits in kind and all pensian benefits arein respect of non-Board duties.

;Pensinn Benefits
Board Members Accrded  tAccrued lump
pension at sum at Cash {iv) Cash
pension age | pensien age |Real increase | Reakincrease Equivatent Equivalent
as at asat In pension at § in famp sum | Transfer Valee | Transfer Value Real
3:/03/2017 | 31/03/2017 | pensionage | atpension {CETV) at {CETW}at increase
{Bands of {Bands of {Bands of |age (Bandsof| 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 | inCETV
£5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £2,500} £'000 £'90% £000
Mr J Burns, Chief Executive 55- 60 165-170 g-25 5-7.5 1,142 1,215 53
tr D Lindsay, Director of Finance 30-35 85-90 Q-25 0-25 549 598 49
Or A Graham, Medical Director 55 - 60 175 - 180 g-25 5-7.5 1,149 1,216 43
Dr C Davidson, Director of Public Health 55- 60 170-175 25-5 7.5-10 1,273 1,351 56
Professor. H Borland, Nurse Director 30-35 95 - 100 25-5 5-7.5 556 633 &7
wr 5 Donnelly, Non-executive Director 20- 25 65-70 0-25 0-2.5 436 461 21
Dr J McKay, Non-execuiive Director 20-25 65-70 0-%5 0-25 465 491 19

{iv) The real discount rate used to evaluate CETV has been as advised by the UK Government Actuaries Department.

Fair Pay Disclosures

2016/2017 2017/2018

Range of staff remuneration | 16,113 - | Range of staff remuneration | 16,532-
284,543 283,854
Highest Earning Director's 170-175 | Highest Earning Director's 160-165
Total Remuneration (£000's) Total Remuneration (£000's)
Median Total Remuneration | 29,297 | Median Total Remuneration | 29,489
Ratio 5.89 Ratio 5.51

Commentary

Boards are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid director and the median remuneration of the Board's workforce. The
banded total remuneration of the highest-paid director in NHS Ayrshire & Arran in the
financial year 2017/2018 was £160,000-£165,000 (2016/2017 was £170,000-£175,000).
In 2017/2018 this was 5.51 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was
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£29 498 while in 2016/2017 this was 5.89 times the median remuneration, which was
£29,297.

There was a increase of 0.7% year on year in the median remuneration of the
workforce. During 2017/2018, there were 38 clinical members of staff whose
remuneration was higher than the highest earning director. During 2016/2017, there
were 17 clinical members of staff whose remuneration was higher than the highest paid
director.

Total remuneration for this purpose inciudes salary, non-consolidated performance

related pay, as well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension
contributions, the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions or benefits in kind.

Staff Report

a) Higher Paid Employees’ Remuneration

Employees whose remuneration fell within the following ranges:

2018 2017

Number Number
Employees whose remuneration fell within the following ranges:
Clinicians
£70,001 to £80,000 52 41
£ 80,061 to £ 90,000 41 41
£90,001 to E100,000 44 45
£100,001 1o £110,000 33 35
£110,001 {o E120.000 28 36
£120,001 to £130,000 38 38
£130,001 to £140,000 32 24
£140,001 to £150,000 24 18
£150,001 to £160,000 17 20
£160,001 to £170,000 14 15
£170,001 to £180,000 8 7
£180,001 to £180,000 8 5
£190,001 io £200,000 ] 2
£200,001 and above 5 6
Other :
£70,001 to £80.000 14 7
£80,001 tfo E£90,000 3 5
£980,001 to £100,000 0 1
£100,001 to £110,000 4 3
£110,001 o £120,000 0 0
£120,001 to £130,000 0 it
£130,001 1o £140,000 1 1
£140,001 and above 0 &)
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d Sickness Absence

2018 2017
Sickness absence rate 5.3% 51%

e Staff policies applied during the financial year relating to the employment of
disabled persons

In accordance with the Staff Governance Standards, NHS Ayrshire & Arran is committed
to ensuring that all staff are treated fairly and equally regardless of their

protected characteristic. Therefore, all staff, including those staff with a disability, have
the same opportunities in every aspect of their employment journey beginning at the
recruitment stage.

In accordance with current policy:

 All disabled applicants who meet the minimum criteria for a job vacancy will be
invited to attend for interview and their suitability for the post will be based on
their skills, knowledge and experience. This includes existing staff who apply for
a promoted post.

+ Reasonable adjustments will be made both in terms of duties and/or equipment
required to retain an employee in work should they become disabled during their
employment.

o Individual training needs are primarily identified and agreed at the annual PDP
meeting. The subsequent development plan is created to meet the needs of the
employee thus providing all staff with the same opportunity for development.

NHS Ayrshire & Arran also participates in a number of employability initiatives to support
people with a disability to gain work experience and sustainable employment eg the
Management Trainee Scheme for disabled graduates, which is a 2-year employment
opportunity for disabled graduates providing them with a challenging and rewarding
experience of employment.
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f  Exit packages

EXIT PACKAGES

2018
Number of Number of | Total nur‘nber Cost of exit
compulsory other of exit packages
redundancies departures packages by (E000})
Exit package cost band agreed cost band
<£10,000 0
£10,000 - £25,000 0
£25,000 - £50,000 0
£50,000 - £100,000 1 1 80
£100,000- £150,000 &)
£150,000- £200,000 0
£200,000- £250,000 0
>£250,000 0
Total number of exit packages by type 0 1 1
Total resource cost (£000) 0 80 [ 80
EXIT PACKAGES - PRIOR YEAR
2017
Number of Number of Total nur.nher Cost of exit
compulsory other of exit packages
redundancies departures packages by (£000)

Exit package cost band agreed cost band
<£10,000 0
£10,000 - £25,000 0
£25,000 - £60,000 0
£50,000 - £100,000 1 1 64
£100,000- £150,600 Y
£150,000- £200,000 6]
£200,000- £250,000 0
>£250,000 0 G
Total humber of exit packages by type 0 1 1
Total resource cost (£000) 0 64 | 64
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Parliamentary Accountability Report

Losses and Special Payments

On occasion, the Board is required to write off balances that are no longer
recoverable. Losses and special payments over £250,000 require formal approval to
regularise such transactions and their notation in the annual accounts.

Reference Description 2017/2018

£000
CNORIS Total claims paid under the CNORIS scheme 2,833
Other losses Others 377

In the year to 31 March 2018, the following balances in excess of £250,000 were
written off:

In 2017/2018, the Board was required to pay out £1.5 million as a lump sum and
£120,000 of periodic payment in respect of one claim individually greater than
£250,000 settled under the CNORIS scheme. The Board also paid £670,251 in the
year in respect of another clinical negligence claim. Further details on the scheme
can be found in note 1 (accounting policies) of the annual accounts.

The Board is also required to provide for CNORIS claims notified to it and which will
be settled at a future date; details of these provisions can be found in note 13a.

Fees and Charges

As required in the fees and charges guidance in the Scottish Public Finance Manual,
NHS Ayrshire & Arran charges for services provided on a full cost basis whenever
applicable. NHS Ayrshire & Arran host, on behalf of NHS Scotland, the financial
ledger and helpdesk. The staffing, software and managed technical service costs
are met by the Board then recharged to the other twenty-one Boards. Income from
Boards of £2.6 million offset the costs for the year of £2.6 million. In addition the
Board provided a payroll service to another Board and charged £0.04 million.
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Audit Report
Independent auditor’s report to the members of Ayrshire and Arran Health Board, the
Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of Ayrshire and
Arran Health Board and its group for the year ended 31 March 2018 under the National
Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978, The financial statements comprise the Statement of
Consolidated Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Summary of Resource Outturn, the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Consolidated Cash Fiows,
the Consolidated Summary of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as
interpreted and adapted by the 2017/2018 Government Financial Reporting Manual (the
2017/2018 FReM).

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:

« give a true and fair view in accordance with the National Health Service
(Scotland) Act 1978 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers of
the state of the affairs of the board and its group as at 31 March 2018 and of the
net expenditure for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 2017/2018 FReM; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health
Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Ministers.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the board and its group in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs
(UK) require us to report to you where:
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« the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or

» the board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Executive's Responsibilities as the
Accountable Officer, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting
framework, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing
the ability of the board and its group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other information in the annual report and accounts

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information in the annual report and
accounts. The other information comprises the information other than the financial
statements, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report, and our independent
auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on
matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in
this report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read all the
other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
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obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements

were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued
by the Scottish Ministers.

Responsibilities for regularity

The Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and
income. We are responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and
income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotiand) Act 2000.

Report on other requirements

Opinions on matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland

In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions
made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which
the financia! statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
and that report has been prepared in accordance with the National Health
Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Ministers; and

« the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the National
Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978 and directions made thereunder by the
Scottish Ministers.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff
Report are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
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« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit

« there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In
accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor
General for Scotland, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in
their individual capacities, or to third parties.

e

Pat Kenny, CPFA {fér and on behalf of Deloitte LLP)
110 Queen Street

Glasgow

G13BX

United Kingdom

25 June 2018
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44444 NHS Ayrshire and Arran NHS
Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Net Expenditure mﬁ
_for the year ended 31st March 2018 & Aman B
2017 2018
£000 Note £000
395,844  Staff costs 3a 411,737
103,376  Independent Primary Care Services 3b 105,377
152,265  Drugs and medical supplies 153,333
602,649 © Other health care expenditure 630677
1,254,134 Gross expenditure for the year 1,301,124
(426,487)  Less: operating income 4 (442,197)
824  Associates and joint ventures accounted for on an equity basis 548
828471 Net expenditure for the year 859473
_ Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure
(400) Net (gain) / loss on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (18,852)
(1,073)  Net(gain) / loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 470
{1473) __Other Comprehensive Expenditure ...(18,382)
826,098 Comprehensive Net Expenditure 841,001

Pensions and similar obligations

The Notes to the Accounts, numbered 1 to 27, form an integral part of these Accounts.

The presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure has been changed
following a review of our financial statements in order to provide information which better reflects the
activities of NHS Ayrshire and Arran. The comparative information in respect of 2016-17 has been
presented above in the new format.

Comparative information in respect of 2016-17 has not been restated.

Full details of changes to the presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure are
disclosed in Note 20.
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NHS Ayrshire and Arran

Summary of Resource Outturn

for the year ended 31st March 2018

s

Aj.-rshke B —
& Aman

2018
Note _£000
Summary Of Core Revenue Resource Outturn
Net Operating Costs SOCNE 859,473
Total Non-Core Expenditure (see below) (34,729)
- Family Health Services Non-Discretionary Allocation (43,499)
Donated Assets Income 2a 350
Endowment Net Operating Costs (1,538)
Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for on an equity basis (546)
Total Core Expenditure ' 779,511
 Core Revenue Resource Limit 779884
Savmg against Core Revenue Resource Lamlt (RRL) 173
Summary Of Non-Core Revenue Resource Outturn
Capital Grants to Other Bodies 1,278
Depreciation / Amortisation 13,609
Annually Managed Expenditure - Impairments 7,666
Annually Managed Expenditure - Creation of Provisions 3,581
Annually Managed Expenditure - Depreciation of Donated Assets 2a 450
Annually Managed Expenditure - Pension Valuation ' 10
Additional SGHSCD non-core funding 8,135
IFRS PFI Expenditure 4]
Total Non-Core Expenditure 34,729
Non Core Revenue Resource Limit 34,729
Excess against Non Core Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) 0
Summary Resource Qutturn
Resource Expenditure Saving
{Excess}
_ £000 £000 £000
Core ' ' : 779,684 778,511 173
Non-Core 34,729 34,729 0
Total 814,413 814,240 173
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Nijﬁg; Ayrshire and Arran NHS |
Consolidated Statement of Financial Positon j‘;;{'ﬂ:
for the year ended 31st March 2018 & Aman
Consolidated Board Consolidated Board
2017 2017 2018 2018
£000 £000 Note £000 £000
395,829 395,829 Property, pfant and equipment 7a 402,643 402,643
' Financial assets:
10,086 0 Available for sale financial assets 10 9,592 0]
943 0 investments in associates and joint ventures 1,678 0
44,578 44 578 Trade and other receivables 9 25,960 25.980
451,436 440,407 Tofal non-current assets 439,873 428,603
4,090 4,080 inventories 8 4,597 4,587
Financial assets:
14,318 13,708 Trade and other receivables 9 40,984 41,257
- 540 115 Cash and cash equivalents 11 427 142
25 25 Assets classified as held for sale 7b o 0
18,973 17,938 Total current assefs 46,008 45,996
470,409 468,345 Total assets 485,881 474,599
{12,214} (12,214) Provisions 13a (32,524) (32,524)
Financial liabilities: '
{54,0786) (54,001) Trade and other payables 12 (71,661) (71,565)
{1.623) 0 Liabilities in associates and joint ventures 24 4} g
(67,913} {66,215) Total current liabilities (104,185) {104,089)
402,496 392,130 Non-current assets less net current liabilities 381,696 370,510
{82,409) (82,409) Provisions 13a (66,839) {66,839)
Financial liabilities:
(69,653) (69,653) Trade and other payables 12 (67,580} {67,580)
8] 4] Liabilities in associates and joint ventures (2,904}
(162,062) (152,062) Total non-current liabilities {137,323) {134,419)
250,434 240,063 Assets less liabilities 244,373 236,091
Taxpayers' Equity
149,186 149,186 General fund .~ SOCTE 130,805 130,905
90,882 90,882 Revaluation reserve SOCTE 105,186 105,186
(680} 0 Other reserves - associates and joint ventures - 80CTE (1,226) o
11,046 0 Fund held on Trust SOCTE 3,508 0
250,434 240,068 Total taxpayers' equity 244,373 236,091
The Notes to the Accounts, numbered 1 to 27, form an integral part of these Accounts.
Adopted by the Board on 25 c\l Ure. 20 ( o3
L
Director of Finance DQV@ %/ l Vla(ff‘ﬁlu
/ B
Chief Executive ﬁ@\v\,\//}i
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NHS Ayrshire and Arran__ NHS
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows . S
&yA'rra;_'t

for the year ended 31st March 2018

2017 2018 2018
£000 . Note €000 €000
Cash flows from operating activities '
{828,471) Net operating cost SoCTE (859,473)
14,347 Adiustments for non-cash transactions 2a 21,539
6,899 Add back: interest payable recognised in net operating cost 2b 6,926
0 Deduct; interest receivable recognised in net operating cost 4 0
(404} Investment income {392)
12,928 Movements in working capital 2¢ 13,443
{794,701) Net cash outflow from operating activities 27¢ (817,257)
Cash flows from investing activities
(13,072) Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,791)
{364) Investment Additions 10 (583)
1,682 Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment 331
2,147 Receipts from sale of investments 607
404 interest received ) 382
{9,303) Net cash outflow from investing activities 27¢ {8,044)
Cash fiows from financing activities
812,361 Cash drawn down SoCTE 834,560
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and
{1,464} On-balance sheet PF1 contracts (1,746}
0 Interest paid ' 2¢ 0
Interest element of finance leases and
{6,899) On-balance sheet PFI/PPP contracts 2b (6,926)
803,998 Net Financing 27c 825,388
{6) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the period 1 (113)
______ 546 _Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period - 540
_ 540 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 427
Reconcitiation of net cash fiow to movement in net debt/cash:
(8) Increase / {decrease) in cash in year ) (113)
546 Net debt / cash at 1 April 540
540 Nef cash at 31 March 427

The Notes to the Accounts, humbered 1 to 27, form an integral part of these Accounts.
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NHS Ay;shi're and Arran

Consolidated Summary of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity mmwi
for the year ended 31st March 2018 & Arrary i
General Revaluation Associates Funds Held Total
Fund Reserve & Joint on Trust Reserves
Ventures
o ) Note £000 £000 £000 ~_£000 ~E000
Balance at 31 March 2017 149,186 90,882 {680) 11,046 250,434
Balance at 1 April 2017 149,186 90,882 (680) 11,046 250,434
Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2017 :
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  7a 18,852 18,852
Net loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 10 0 0
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (6,074) (6,074)
Revaluation & impairments iaken to operafing costs 2a 6,074 8,074
Transfers between reserves ' 4,548 (4,548) Q
Net operating cost for the year CFS  (857,389) (5486) (1,538} {859,473)
Total recognised income and expense for 2017/18 (852,841) 14,304 (546) (,538) (840,621}
Funding:
Drawn down CFS 834,660 834,560
Balance at 31 March 2018 BS 130,905 105,186 {1,226) 9,508 244,373
General Revaluation Associates Funds Held Total
Fund Reserve & Joint on Trust Reserves
Prior Year Note Ventures
L ) ~E000 E000 £000 ~_EO000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2016 161,635 93,813 144 10,552 266,144
Balance at 1 April 2016 161,635 93,813 144 10,552 266,144
Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2016-17 ; -
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  7a 400 400
Imypairment of property, plant and equipment 10 {1,531} (1,531}
Revaluation & impairments {aken to operating costs 2a 1,831 1,531
Transfers belween reserves 3,331 {3,331} 0
Net operating cost for the year (828,141) (824) 494 {828,471)
Total recognised income and expense for 2016-17 {824,810) {2,931) {824} 494 {828,071)
Funding:
Drawn down 812,361 812,361
Balance at 31 March 2017 BS 149,186 90,882 (680) 11,046 250,434
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Note 1 ~ Accounting Policies

1. Authority
In accordance with the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers under
section 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
appended, these Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by HM Treasury,
which follows International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to
the public sector. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items
considered material in relation to the accounts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in section 30 below.

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in current year

There are no new standards, amendments or interpretations effective for
the first time this year.

{b) Standards, amendments and interpretation early adopted this year

There are no new standards, amendments or interpretations early adopted
this year.

2. Basis of Consolidation
In accordance with IAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
the Financial Statements consolidate the Ayrshire and Arran Health Board
Endowment Fund.

NHS Endowment Funds were established by the NHS (Scotland) Act 1978. The
legal framework under which charities operate in Scotland is the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. Under the 1978 Act Endowment
Trustees are also members of the NHS Board. The Board members (who are
also Trustees) are appointed by Scottish Ministers.

Ayrshire and Arran Health Board Endowment Fund is a Registered Charity with
the Office of the Charity Regulator of Scotland (OSCR) and is required to
prepare and submit Audited Financial Statements to OSCR on an annual basis.
The trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} (effective 1 January
2015).
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The basis of consolidation used is Merger Accounting. Any intra-group
transactions between the Board and the Endowment Fund have been
eliminated on consolidation.

Note 33 to the Annual Accounts, details how these consolidated Financial
Statements have heen calculated

In conjunction with the three Ayrshire Local Authorities, the Board has formed
three Integration Joint Boards (1JBs), one each for their respective areas, under
the terms of the Public Bodies (Joint Working) Scotland Act 2014.

These Integration Joint Boards are considered to be joint ventures under IAS
11 - Joint Arrangements, and as such they require the Board to account for
their investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 -
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The Board considers that there is joint control over the |JBs as no single party
controls the arrangements on its own and this is considered a significant
judgement made by the Board in relation to the operation of the |JBs.

Prior Year Adjustments
There have been no prior year adjustments made in the financial statements for
this year.

Going Concern
The accounts are prepared on the going concern basis, which provides that the
entity will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Accounting Convention

The Accounts are prepared on an historical cost basis, as modified by the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and liabilities at fair
value,

Funding

NHS Ayrshire and Arran Board

Most of the expenditure of the Health Board as Commissioner is met from
funds advanced by the Scottish Government within an approved revenue
resource limit. Cash drawn down to fund expenditure within this approved
revenue resource limit is credited to the general fund.

All other income receivable by the board that is not classed as funding is
recognised in the year in which it is receivable.

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the
following financial year, that income is deferred.
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6.2

7.1

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material
conditions of sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the
sale contract.

Non-discretionary funding outwith the RRL is allocated to match actual
expenditure incurred for the provision of specific pharmaceutical, dental or
ophthalmic services identified by the Scottish Government. Non-discretionary
expenditure is disclosed in the accounts and deducted from operating costs
charged against the RRL in the Statement of Resource Outturn.

Funding for the acquisition of capital assets received from the Scottish
Government is credited to the general fund when cash is drawn down.

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that
they have been received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and
services. Expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such
as property, plant and equipment.

Ayrshire and Arran Health Board Endowment Fund

All incoming resources are recognised once the Ayrshire and Arran Health
Board Endowment Funds has received its entitlement to the resources, it is
certain that the resources will be received and the monetary value of incoming
resources can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Legacies and donations to the Ayrshire and Arran Health Board Endowment
Fund are accounted for as incoming resources upon receipt and classified as
restricted or unrestricted based on the donors' stated wishes.

Income from investment of charitable endowment funds is earmarked as
restricted or unrestricted based on the classification of the original legacy or
donation in line with the donor's stated wishes.

All expenditure, including grants, is accounted for on an accruals basis and is
only incurred where this will further the charitable objects of the Ayrshire and
Arran Health Board Endowment Funds. All expenditure is recognised once
there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the fund to the
expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment

The treatment of capital assets in the accounts (capitalisation, valuation,
depreciation, particulars concerning donated assets) is in accordance with the
NHS Capital Accounting Manual.

Title to properties included in the accounts is held by Scottish Ministers.
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where: it is held for use in

delivering services or for administrative purposes; it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Board; it
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is expected to be used for more than one financial year; and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

All assets falling into the following categories are capitalised:

1) Property, plant and equipment assets which are capable of being used
for a period which could exceed one year, and have a cost equal to or
greater than £5,000.

2) In cases where a new hospital would face an exceptional write off of
items of equipment costing individually less than £5,000, the Board has
the option to capitalise initial revenue equipment costs with a standard
life of 10 years.

3) Assets of lesser value may be capitalised where they form part of a
group of similar assets purchased at approximately the same time and
cost over £20,000 in total, or where they are part of the initial costs of
equipping a new development and total over £20,000.

7.2 Measurement
Valuation:

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost,
representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset
and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

All assets are measured subsequently at fair value as follows:

Specialised NHS Land, buildings, equipment, installations and fittings are
stated at depreciated replacement cost, as a proxy for fair value as specified in
the FReM.

Non specialised land and buildings, such as offices, are stated at fair value.

Valuations of all land and building assets are reassessed by valuers on an
annual basis of professional valuations and adjusted in intervening years to
take account of movements in prices since the latest valuation. The valuations
are carried out in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual insofar as these terms are consistent
with the agreed requirements of the Scottish Government.

Non-specialised equipment, installations and fittings are valued at fair value.
Boards value such assets using the most appropriate valuation methodology
available (for example, appropriate indices). A depreciated historical cost basis
as a proxy for fair value in respect of such assets which have short useful lives
or low values {or both).

Assets under construction are valued at current cost. This is calculated by the

expenditure incurred to which an appropriate index is applied to arrive at
current value. These are also subject to impairment review.
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7.3

To meet the underlying objectives established by the Scottish Government the
following accepted variations of the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual have
been required:

Specialised operational assets are valued on a modified replacement cost basis
to take account of modern substitute building materials and locality factors only.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised into an asset’s carrying value when it is
probable the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Board and the cost can be measured reliably. Where subsequent expenditure
does not meet these criteria the expenditure is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. If part of an asset is replaced, then the part it
replaces is de-recognised, regardless of whether or not it has been depreciated
separately.

Revaluations and Impairment:

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the
revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse an
impairment previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, in which case they are recognised as income. Movements on
revaluation are considered for individual assets rather than groups or
land/buildings together.

Permanent decreases in asset values and impairments are charged gross to
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Any related balance on the
revaluation reserve is transferred to the General Fund.

Gains and losses:

Gains and losses on revaluation are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Depreciation

items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated to their estimated
residual value over their remaining useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Depreciation is charged on each main class of tangible asset as follows:

1}  Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.

2) Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in PFI
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use
or reverts to the Board, respectively.
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3)

4)

5)

6)

Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held
for Sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the reclassification.

Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on current value
over the estimated remaining life of the asset, as advised by the
appointed valuer. They are assessed in the context of the maximum
useful lives for building elements.

Equipment is depreciated over the estimated life of the asset.
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are

depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful life.

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis.

The following asset lives have been used:

Asset Category/Component Useful Life
(years)
Buildings Structure {Depreciated Replacement Cost) 3to72
Buildings Engineering (Depreciated Replacement Cost) 110 33
Buildings (Existing Use Value) 2 to 40
Moveable Engineering Plant 15
Furniture and Medium Life Equipment 10
Short/Medium Life Medical Equipment 7
Information Technology 5
Vehicles and Soft Furnishings 5
Office, Short Life Medical and Other Equipment 5
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8.
8.1

8.2

Intangible Assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which
are capable of being sold separately from the rest of the Board’s business or
which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only
where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the Board and where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets that meet the recognition criteria are capitalised when they
are capable of being used in a Board’s activities for more than one year and
they have a cost of at least £5,000.

The main class of intangible asset recognised by the Board is shown below:

Software licences:
Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets
where expenditure of at least £5,000 is incurred.

Measurement

Valuation:

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly
attributable costs needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point
that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Where an active
(homogeneous) market exists, intangible assets are carried at fair value,

Where no active market exists, the intangible asset is revalued, using indices or
some suitable model, to the lower of depreciated replacement cost and value in
use where the asset is income generating. Where there is no value in use, the
intangible asset is valued using depreciated replacement cost. These
measures are a proxy for fair value.

Revaluation and impairment:

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the
revaluation reserve, except where, and fo the extent that, they reverse an
impairment previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure, in which case they are recognised in income.

Permanent decreases in asset values and impairments are charged gross to
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Any related balance on the
revaluation reserve is transferred to the General Fund.

Temporary decreases in asset values or impairments are charged to the
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset

concerned, and thereafter are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure.

Intangible assets held for sale are reclassified to ‘non-current assets held for
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8.3

10.

sale’ measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to
sell’.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised fo their estimated residual value over their
remaining useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption
of economic or service delivery benefits.

Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
for software licences. These are amortised over the shorter term of the licence
and their useful economic lives. Amortisation is charged on a straight line basis
using an asset life of 5 years.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once
all of the following criteria are met:

« the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms which are usual and customary for such sales;

» the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
= management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
» an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
x the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;

» the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of
classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and

» the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the
plan will be dropped or significant changes made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing
carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell'. Depreciation ceases to
be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the ‘fair value less
costs to sell’ falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when
all material sale confract conditions have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not
qualify for recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an
operational asset and the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-
recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.

Donated Assets

Non-current assets that are donated or purchased using donated funds are
included in the Balance Sheet initially at the current full replacement cost of the
asset. The accounting treatment, including the method of valuation, follows the
rules in the NHS Capital Accounting Manual.
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1.

12.

13.

Sale of Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and non-current
assets held for sale

Disposal of non-current assets is accounted for as a reduction to the value of
assets equal to the net book value of the assets disposed. When set against
any sales proceeds, the resulting gain or loss on disposal will be recorded in
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Non-current assets held for
sale will include assets transferred from other categories and will reflect any
resultant changes in valuation.

Leasing

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are
borne by the Board, the asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment
and a corresponding liability is recorded. Assets held under finance leases are
valued at their fair values and are depreciated over the remaining period of the
lease in accordance with IFRS.

The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-
recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. The minimum
lease payments (annual rental less operating costs e.g. maintenance and
contingent rental) are apportioned between the repayment of the outstanding
liability and a finance charge. The annual finance charge is allocated to each
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability using either the implicit interest
rate or another relevant basis of estimation such as the sum of the digits
method. Finance charges are recorded as interest payable in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Contingent rental and operating costs are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

Operating leases

Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to
expenditure on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease
incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to expenditure
over the life of the lease.

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from
the building component and the classification for each is assessed separately.
Leased land is treated as an operating lease unless title to the land is expected
to transfer.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value [ess
costs to sell and value in use. Where an asset is not held for the purpose of
generating cash flows, value in use is assumed to equal the cost of replacing
the service potential provided by the asset, unless there has been a reduction
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14.

15.

16.

17.

in service potential. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffer an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment. Impairment losses
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (SOCNE) are
deducted from future operating costs to the extent that they are identified as
being reversed in subsequent revaluations.

General Fund Receivables and Payables

Where the Health Board has a positive net cash book balance at the year end,
a corresponding creditor is created and the general fund debited with the same
amount to indicate that this cash is repayable to the SGHSCD. Where the
Health Board has a nef overdrawn cash position at the year end, a
corresponding debtor is created and the general fund credited with the same
amount to indicate that additional cash is to be drawn down from the SGHSCD.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Taking into
account the high turnover of NHS inventories, the use of average purchase
price is deemed to represent current cost. Work in progress is valued af the
cost of the direct materials plus the conversion costs and other costs incurred
to bring the goods up to their present location, condition and degree of
completion.

Losses and Special Payments

Operating expenditure includes certain losses which would have been made
good through insurance cover had the NHS not been bearing its own risks.
Had the NHS provided insurance cover, the insurance premiums would have
been included as normal revenue expenditure.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the year
in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave and
flexible working time entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end
of the year is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following year.

Pension Costs

The Board participates in the NHS Superannuation Scheme for Scotland
providing defined benefits based on final pensionable pay, where contributions
are credited to the Exchequer and are deemed to be invested in a portfolio of
Government Securities. The Board is unable to identify its share of the
underlying notional assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and
reasonable basis and therefore accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme, as required by IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'. As a result,
the amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
represents the Board's employer contributions payable to the scheme in
respect of the year. The contributions deducted from employees are reflected
in the gross salaries charged and are similarly remitted to Exchequer. The

55




18.

19.

20.

pension cost is assessed every five years by the Government Actuary and
determines the rate of contributions required. The most recent actuarial
valuation is pubfished by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency and is available
on their website.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the
scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure at the time the Board commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.

Clinical and Medical Negligence Costs

Employing health bodies in Scotland are responsible for meeting medical
negligence costs up to a threshold per claim. Costs above this threshold are
reimbursed to Boards from a central fund held as part of the Clinical Negligence
and Other Risks Indemnity Scheme (CNORIS) by the Scottish Government.

NHS Ayrshire and Arran provide for all claims notified to the NHS Central Legal
Office according to the value of the claim and the probability of settiement.
Claims assessed as 'Category 3’ are deemed most likely and provided for in
full, those in ‘Category 2’ as 50% of the claim and those in ‘Category 1’ as nil.
The balance of the value of claims not provided for is disclosed as a contingent
liability. This procedure is intended fo estimate the amount considered to be
the lability in respect of any claims outstanding and which will be recoverable
from the Clinical Negligence and Other Risks indemnity Scheme in the event of
payment by an individual health body. The corresponding recovery in respect
of amounts provided for is recorded as a debtor and that in respect of amounts
disclosed as contingent liabilities are disclosed as contingent assets.

NHS Ayrshire and Arran also provides for its liability from participating in the
scheme. The participation in CNORIS provision recognises the Board’s
respective share of the total liability of NHS Scotland as advised by the Scottish
Government and based on information prepared by NHS Boards and the
Central Legal Office. The movement in the provisions between financial years
is matched by a corresponding adjustment in A.M.E provision and is classed as
non-core expenditure.

Related Party Transactions

Material related party transactions are disclosed in the note 25 in line with the
requirements of IAS 24, Transactions with other NHS bodies for the
commissioning of health care are summarised in Note 4.

Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the Board are outside the scope of VAT and, in general,
output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included
in the capitalised purchase cost of non current assets. Where output tax is
charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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21.

22.

23.

PFl /THUB/NPD Schemes

Transactions financed as revenue transactions through the Private Finance
Initiative or alternative initiatives such as HUB or the Non Profit Distributing
Model (NPD) are accounted for in accordance with the HM Treasury application
of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, outlined in the FReM.

Schemes which do not fall within the application of IFRIC 12 are deemed fo be
off-balance sheet. Where the Board has contributed assets, a prepayment for
their fair value is recognised and amortised over the life of the PFI contract by
charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Where, at the
end of the PF| contract, a property reverts to the Board, the difference between
the expected fair value of the residual on reversion and any agreed payment on
reversion is built up on the balance sheet over the life of the contract by
capitalising part of the unitary charge each year.

Transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as
interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-balance sheet' by
the Board. The underlying assets are recognised as Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets at their fair value. An equivalent liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 17. Where it is not possible to separate the
finance element from the service element of unitary payment streams this has
heen estimated from information provided by the operator and the fair values of
the underlying assets. Assets are subsequently revalued in accordance with
the treatment specified for their applicable asset categories.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the
liability, a finance cost and the charges for services. The finance cost is
calculated using the implicit interest rate for the scheme.

The service charge and the finance cost interest element are charged in the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Provisions

The Board provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain
timing or amount at the balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is significant, the estimated cash flows are discounted using the
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury.

Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will
only be confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within the Board’s
control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 19 where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 19, unless the

probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are
defined as:
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24,

25.

« possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

» present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Corresponding Amounts

Corresponding amounts are shown for the primary statements and notes to the
financial statements. Where the corresponding amounts are not directly
comparable with the amount to be shown in respect of the current financial
year, IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, requires that they should be
adjusted and the basis for adjustment disclosed in a note to the financial
statements.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The Board classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise derivatives. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets. The Board does not trade in
derivatives and does not apply hedge accounting.

{b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash at bank and in hand
in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. Available for sale
financial assets comprise investments held by the Ayrshire and Arran Health
Board Endowment Fund.

Recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Board becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
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Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired or have been transferred and the Board has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(a)

(b)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initiaily
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
loans and receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Board will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30
days overdue) are considered indicators that the loan and receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. When a loan or receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in
the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised and
subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
financial assets classified as available for sale are recognised in equity
in other reserves. When financial assets classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
when the Board’s right to receive payments is established.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less impairment.

The Board assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is

objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for
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sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are
impaired. if any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. iImpairment losses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Board classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, and other financial liabilities. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilities were issued.
Management determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise
derivatives. Liabilities in this category are classified as current
liabilities. The NHS Board does not trade in derivatives and does not
apply hedge accounting.

(b) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current liabilities. The NHS Board’s other
financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables in the balance
sheet.

Recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the NHS Board becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when it is extinguished,
that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

(b) Other financial liabilities
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26,

27.

28.

29.

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
This has been identified as the senior management of the Board.

Operating segments are unlikely to directly relate to the analysis of
expenditure shown in notes 4 to 7 for Hospital & Community, Family Health
and Other Service and Administration Costs, the basis of which relates to
Scottish Government funding streams and the classification of which varies
depending on Scottish Government reporting requirements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at calt with
banks, cash balances held with the Government Banking Service, balances
held in commercial banks and other short-term highly fiquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet. Where the Government Banking Service is using Citi and Royal Bank
of Scotland Group to provide the banking services, funds held in these
accounts should not be classed as commercial bank balances.

Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the Board are sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the
functional currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
Where the Board has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at
the balance sheet date:

o monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at ‘fair value
through income and expenditure’) are translated at the spot exchange
rate on 31 March;

¢ non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historicai cost are
translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

e non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the
transaction or on re-translation at the balance sheet date) are recognised in
income or expenditure in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and fliabilities are
recognised in the same manner as other gains and losses on these items.

Third party assets
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30.

31.

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients)
are not recognised in the accounts since the Board has no beneficial interest in
them.

However, they are disclosed in note 26 to the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of HM Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual.

Key sources of judgement and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Board makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The Board makes judgements in applying accounting policies.
The estimates, assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk of a
causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the financial statements within the next financial year are addressed
below.

Clinical and Medical Negligence Claims

The Board’s accounting policy relating to the provision for clinical and medical
negligence is described in section 18 above. The main elements of uncertainty
relate to the timing of settlements which could be many years in the future, the
probability of making a settlement and the value associated with these potential
future settiements. The timing is based on an assessment made by the
Board’s litigation manager and financiat controller at the end of each year. The
assessment of probability is carried out by the Board’s legal advisors, Central
Legal Office (CLO) based on previous experience and records maintained on a
national basis which is then reviewed by the litigation manager.

Estimated settlement values are based on initial claims received by the CLO
and advised to the Board which are periodically updated by CLO using reports
on expected Pursuer costs and cost of living indices.

Early Retirement and Injury Benefitg

The Board has provided for the estimated future costs relating to early
retirement and injury benefits. Reliance is placed on information provided by
other parties in order to establish the value of such provisions. The Scottish
Public Pensions Agency provides details of claimants and the amounts the
Board is due to pay over. Future payments are estimated using a discount rate
provided by HM Treasury and life tables provided by the Office for National
Statistics (ONS). Any future significant changes to the discount rate or the life
tables could have a material impact on the level of provision required.

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued in the current year but
not yet effective.

The following standards, amendments and'interpretations were issued in the
current year but are not yet effective and have not been applied:
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« IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The standard is expected to be applied,
through Government Financial Reporting Manual interpretation, in 2018/19.
Application of the standard is not expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements.

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard is expected
to be applied, through Government Financial Reporting Manual
interpretation, in 2018/19. Application of the standard is not expected to
have a material effect on the financial statements.

« IFRS 16 Leases was published by the International Accounting Standards
Board in January 2016 and is applicable for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 2019. This means that for NHS Ayrshire and Arran, the
standard will be effective for the year ending 31 March 2020. IFRS16 will
require leases to be recognised on the Statement of Financial Position as an
asset which reflects the right to use the underlying asset, and a liability which
represents the obligation to make lease payments. At the date of
authorisation of these financial statements, IFRS 16 has not been adopted
for use in the public sector and has not been included in the FReM. As such
it is not yet possible to quantify the impact of IFRS 16 accurately.
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NHS Ayrshire and Arran

Notes to the Accounts

_wféw

T for the year ended 31st March 2018 T Wma
Note 2 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
2017 2018
_£000 £000
Note 2a  Consolidated adjustment fo non-cash transactions
14,129 Depreciation 14,455
400 Depreciation Donated Assets _ 450
1,531 Impairments on PPE charged to SOCNE 6,074
0 Loss on remeasurement of non-current assets held for sale 0
(1,072) Funding Of Donated Assets (350)
{242) Profit on disposal of property, plant and eguipment (106}
. 824 Investment in IUB 546
(1,223) Realised (gain} / loss on investments 470
14,347 Total Expenditure Not Paid In Cash 21,539
Note 2b Consoclidated adjustment fo non-cash transactions
Interest payable
6,882 PF1 Finance lease charges allocated in the year 6,907
17 Other Finance lease charges allocated in the year 19
0 Provisions - Unwinding of discount ]
6,899 Total Interest Payable 6,926
Note 2¢  Consolidated movements in working capital
2017 2017 2018 2018
_ £000 £000  £000 £000
Inventories
(169) Balance Sheet 8 4,080 4,587
(169)  Netincrease (507)
Trade and Other Receivables
{2,093} Due within one year 14,318 40,984
{21,188}  Due after more than one year 44 578 25,960
' ' 58,896 66,944 '
(23,281) Net increase (8,048)
Trade and Other Payables _
1,625 Due within one year 54,076 71,661
(2,464) Due after more than one year 69,653 67,580
(1,084} . Less: property, plant & equipment (capital) included in above 0 -0
0 Less: General Fund creditor included in above {117} (117}
1,464 Less: lease and PFI creditors included in above {70,383) (68,637}
53,229 70,487
(1,359) Net (increase} / decrease 17,258
Provisions
37,737 - Statement of Financial Position 94,623 99,363
Transfer from provision to General Fund ] 4]
94,623 99,363
37,737 Net decrease 4,740
12,028 Net movement - (decrease} / increase 13,443
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NHS Ayrshire and Arran
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for the year ended 31st March 2018

Note 3 Operating Expenses
2017 2017 2018 2018
Board Consolidated Board Consolidated
fo00 EOOO .. — - £000 e 2000
Note 3a Staff Costs
86,504 86,504 Medical and Dental 80,746 89,746
174,399 174,389 Nursing 181,632 181,632
134,941 134,941 Other Staff 140,359 140,359
395,844 395,844 Fotal Staff Costs 411,737 411,737

Further detail and analysis of employee costs can be found in the Remuneration and Staff Report
forming part of the Accountability Report.

Note 3b Other Operating Costs

Independent Primary Care Services

53,867 53,857 General Medical Services : 54,876 54,876
14,887 14,887 Pharmaceutical Services 15,282 15,282
26,894 26,894 General Dental Services ' 27,125 27,125
7728 7.728 General Ophthalmic Services 8,094 8,094
103,376 103,378 405,377 105,377
Drugs and Medical Supplies
78,989 78,809 Prescribed drugs Primary Care ) . 80,207 80,207
44,316 44,316 Prescribed drugs Secondary Care 43,744 43,744
28,950 28,050 Medical Supplies o 29,382 29,382
152,265 152,265 153,333 153,333
Other health care expenditure
433 686 433 686 Contribution to Infegration Joint Boards 455,200 455 200
58,465 58,465 Goods and services from other NHS Scotland bodies 59,525 59,525
671 671 Goods and services from other UK NHS bodies 519 519 |
3,627 3,627 Goods and services from private providers 4,164 " 4,164 |
5,708 5,708 Goods and services fram voluntary organisations 5,420 5,420
43 43 Resource Transfer 43 43
0 0 L.oss on disposal of assets 0 4]
98,913 98,913 Other operating expenses 102,831 102,831
170 170 External Auditor's remuneration - statutory audit fee 220 220
o 1,356 Endowment Fund expenditure o 2755
601,293 602,649 627,922 630,677
856,934 858,290 Other Operating Expenditure 886,632 889,387
Note 4 Operating Income
2017 2017 2018 2018
Board Consolidated Board Consolidated
£000 ~£000 ‘ - Note £000 £000
23,621 23,621 " Income from othier NHS Scotland bodies 24,710 24,710
603 603 Income from NHS non-Scottish bodies 659 659
171 171 ‘Income from private patients : 168 . 168
376,901 376,901 Ihcome for services commissioned by integration Joint Board 390,069 380,089
5,436 5436 ' Patient charges for primary care o 5,408 5,408
1,072 1,072 Donations 350 350
242 242 profit on disposal of assets 106. . 108
Non NHS:
40 . 40 Overseas patients (non-reciprocal} 15 15
Q 1,850 Endowment Fund Income 0 1,217
" 16,651 16,551 Other . . ' 19,497 19,497
424,637 426,487 Total Income SoCNE 440,980 442,197
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Note 5 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Acute East North South Corporate Group
HSCP HSCP HSCP
£000 £000 £000 £00D £000 £000
Net operating cost 341,044 151,215 138,814 99,378 129,022 859,473
Net operating cost - prior year 329,229 - 144,154 136,262 95,063 123,763 828,471
Note 6 Intangible Assets (Non-Current) Consolidated Board
2017 2018
Software Licences o £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 21 21
At 31st March 21 21
Amortisation
At 1st April 21 21
At 31st March 21 21
Net Book Value
At 1st April 0 0
At 31st March 0 0
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NHS Ayrshire and Arran " NHS .
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for the year ended 31st March 2018 Savman
Note 7a Property, Plant and Equipment : Consolidated and Board
Land Buildings Dwelkings Transport Plant & Information Furniture Assets Under Total
{inc under {excluding Equipment Machinery Technology & Fittings Construction
bufldinas} dwellings)
e £000 £000 __£000 - EDOD L £000 £000 £000  E0OD
Cost or valuation
Ab T April 2017 16,893 352,177 1,008 273 82,936 30,425 10,616 12,166 506,492
Additions Purchased 0 2,714 0 0 3,232 1,308 85 1,452 8,791
Additions Donated 0 4] i} 1] 350 0 ] 1] 350
Completions 0 9,671 o} 0 ] 0 1} (9,671) 0
Revaluation 81 7.892 0 0 o 0 s} 0 7.973
Impairment Charge ) (650) {2.683) {450) 0 1} o} 0 (2.474) (8,257}
Disposals Purchased 4] T {200) s} Q (26,5694) . {24,598) {2,951) 0 (54,343)
Disposals Donated 0 _ 0 0 (66} {1.946) 0 0 0 (2,012}
At 31 March 2018 16,324 369,571 556 267 57,978 7,138 7.750 1,473 460,994
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 : ] 712 0 273 72,021 27,986 9,671 0 110,663
Pravided during the year Purchased ] 11,014 17 o 2,266 882 276 0 14,455
Provided during the year Donated ¢ 93 0 0 357 0 0 0 450
Completions 4]
Revaluation 0 (10,862) (17} "0 0 0 0 ) {10,879)
Impairment Charge 0 (183) 0 0 0 0 0 ¢ (183)
Disposals Purchased 0 v} ¢ 0 {26,594} - {24.598) {2,951} o] {54,143)
Disposals Donated 0 0 o (68) {1,946) 0 o o (2,012)
At 31 March 2018 0 774 0 207 48,104 4,270 6,996 o 58,351
Net book value at 1 April 2017 16,893 351,485 1,008 0 10,915 2,439 945 12,166 395,829
Net book value at 31 March 2018 (BS 16,324 368,797 es6 0 11,874 2,868 754 1,473 402,843
Open Market Value of Land in : '
Land and Dwefings inciuded above 6,784 520
Asset financing:
Owned - purchased 16,324 281,323 556 o] 10,748 2,865 754 1,473 314,043
Owned - donated i 3,130 0 0 1,126 0 0 o 4,256
Hetd on finance lease ] 1,491 0 o] 4] 0 0 0 1,491.
On-balance sheet PFI contracts o 82,8563 0 o 0 0 0 1] 82,853
Net book value at 31 March 2018 16,324 368,797 556 1] 11,874 2,865 764 1,473 402,643
Note 7a Property, Plant and Equipment : Consolidated and Board (Prior Year)
Land Buildings Dwellings . Transport Plant & Information Furniture Assats Under Total
{inc under {excluding Equipment Machinery Technology & Fittings Construction
bulldinas) dwellings)
o £000 £000 __£000 £000 £000  £00Q £000 £000 _ £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2016 i 16,723 311,810 2,372 273 79,888 29,283 10,148 53,232 503,740
Addiions Purchased 130 2,915 [t} 0 4,279 1,132 467 5,133 15,056
Additions Donated 0 832 0 0 240 0 -0 0 1,072
Completions 0 47,057 0 0 0 0 0 (47,057) 0
Transfers to non-civent assets held . :
for sale (16} {9) 0 1] 0- 0 0 0 {25)
Revaluatian 61 {10,319) 45) 0 0 1} i} 1] {10,295)
Impairment Chargs {5) 117 {1.321) v} 0 0 0 {142} {1,585)
Disposals Purchased o 0 0 [} {1.471) 0 G o (1,471)
Disposals Donated o 0 0 0 0 0 G 4] "]
At 31 March 2017 16,893 362,177 1,006 273 82,936 30,425 16,616 12,168 506,492
Depreciation
At 1 April 20186 4] 651 0 273 714,408 27,259 8,763 4] 108,354
Provided during the year Purchased 0 10,641 88 0 1,765 727 808 0 14,129
Provided during the year Donated - .0 81 G 0 319 ¢ 0 0 - 400
Completions o ) B 0
Transters to non-current assets held ) S
for sale 0 0 0 o 0 0 -0 4] 0
Revaluation 0 (10,658) (37) ] o 0 v} 0 {10,695)
Impairment Charge 0 {3) 51) o 0 0 M) 0 (54}
Disposals Purchased 0 0 1] 1] {1.471) 0 [} 0 (1,471}
Disposals Donated 0 o 0 4] 0 0 0 0 ]
At 31 March 2017 0 712 0 273 72,021 27,986 9,671 0 110,663
Not ook value at 1 April 2016 16,723 311,159 2,372 ) 0 8,480 2,034 1,386 53,232 395,386
Net book vaiue at 31 March 2017 (BE 16,893 351,465 1,006 0 10,9186 2,439 945 12,166 395,829
Open Market Value of Land in '
Land and Dwellings included above 7.3563 520
Asset financing: )
Owned - purchased 16,893 267,244 1,006 [} 9,782 2439 945 12,166 310,475
Owned - donated 0 3,173 0 0 1,133 0 o 4] 4,306
Held on finance léase ja] 1,562 0 0 0 [y} 4] 0 1,552
On-balance siteet PFi contracts 0 79,496 0 4] li] 0 o} 0 79,496
Net book value at 31 March 2017 16,893 351,465 1,006 i} 10,915 2,439 845 12,166 395,829
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" NHS Ayrshire and Arran. T NHS |
Notes 1o the Accounts ot
N for the year ended 31st March 2018 . ) & ATan ;
Note 7 b. Assets held for Safe
The NHS Board currently has no Assets Heid for Sale.
Assets held for Sale - Consclidated and Board 2017 2018
£000 £000
At 1 April 1,340 25
Transfers (to) / from property, plant and equipment 7a 25 0
Gain or losses recognised on remeasurement of non-current assets beld for sale 0 0
_Disposals of non-current assets held for sale (1,340) (25)
At 31 March BS 25 0
Note 7c. Property, Plant and Equipment Disclosures
Consolidated Board Consolidated Board
2017 2017 2018 2018
€000 £000 _ R . __Note . E000  £000
391,523 391,623 Purchased 7a 398,387 308,387
4306 4306 Donated i R b 4256 4256
395,829 395,829 Net book value of property, plant and gquipment 402,643 402,643
. i8S 3 Mareh__ - — i
- " Nat book value related {0 jand valued at open market o
7873 -7?§73_ valueat3i March . - , e 7304 . 7304
R Net hook value reiated ko buildings valued at open ' P
24‘559 24’?60_ market value at 31 March - '24’7_67 k24’7677
Total value of assets held under: )
1,562 1,552 Finance Leases ) 1,491 1,481
79,496 79496  PFland PPP Conlracls 82853 82,853
81,048 81,048 . 84,344 84,344
Total depreciation charged in respect of assets held under:
61 61 Finance [eases . 61 61
2408 2,408 PFland PPP contracts 2,665 26658
2,469 2,469 ) 2726 2728

All land and 100% of buildings were revalued by an independent valuer, The Valuation Office Agency, as at 31/03/2018 on the basis of fair
value (market value or depreciated replacement costs where appropriate). The values were computed in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors Statement of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance notes, subject to the special accounting practices of

the NHS.

The net impact was an increase of £18.852m (2016-17: an increase of £0.400m) which was credited to the revaluation reserve,
Impairment of £6.074m (2016-17: £1.532m) was charged to the Statement of CGomprehensive Net Expenditure and Summary of Resource.

The Impairment figure of £6.074m mainly relates to the downward movement in the receipt polential of the surpius land on the Ayrshire
Cantrat site, the removal of buiidings on the Ailsa campus as part of the ongoing demolition programme, writing off advisor fees refated to
the ariginal mental health business case, and the impairment to the new A&E and combined assessment unit at Ayr Hospital.
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Note 7d Analysis of Gapital Expenditure

2017 2018
£000 £000
15,056 Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment 7a 8,791
1,072 Donated Asset Additions 7a 350
16,128 Gross Capital Expenditure 9,141
0 Net book value of disposal of property, plant and equipment 200
1,340 Value of disposal of Non-Current Assets held for sale b 25
1,072 ' Donated Asset income ' 350
2,412 Capital Income 575
13,716 Net Capital Expenditure 8,566

Summary of Capital Resource Qutturn

13,642 Core capital expenditure included above 8,566
13,643 Core Capital Resource Limit 8,566
1 Saving against Core Capital Resource Limit (CRL) 0
74 Non Core capital expenditure included above 0
74 Mon Core Capital Resource Limit 0
0 Saving against Non Core Capital Resource Limif (CRL) 0
13,716 Total Capital Expendifure 8,566
13,717 Total Capitat Resource Limit 8,566
1 Saving against Total Capital Resource Limit 0
Note 8 Inventories

Consolidated Board Consolidated Board
2017 2017 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
4,090 4090 Raw Materials and Consumables 4,597 4597
4,090 4,090 Net book value of property, plant and equipment 4,597 4,597

at 31 March
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Note 9 Trade and Other Receivables
Consolidated Board Consolidated Board
2617 2017 2018 2018
£000 £000 Note £000 £000
50 630" Boards SEREE e s
620 620 NHS Scotland receivables due within 1 year 692 692
34 34  NHS Non-Scottish Bodies 132 132
0208 908 VAT recoverable 1,000 1,000
2.211 2,211 Prepayments 1,687 1,687
2,088 2,088 Accrued income 2112 2,112
4,457 3,847  Other Receivables 11,594 11,867
4,000 4,000  Reimbursement of provisions 23,767 23,767
13,698 13,088 Other receivables due within one year 40,292 40,565
4318 13708 Totalrecelvables dus withinoneyear ~ _ BS ioges AT
44578 @ 44578 Reimbursement of Provisions ) o e 25,960 25860
44,578 44,578  Total Receivables due after more thanoneyear _ BS 25960 25,960
~ E8,896 58,286 Total Receivables _ ] i Te60a4 67217 |
B "3 39 Provision for impairment included above 58
WGA Classification
620 620  NHS Scotland 692 692
262 262  Cenfral Government Bodies 188 188
506 506  Whole of Government Bodies 647 647
34 34 Balances with NHS Bodies in England and Wales 132 132
57.474 56,864  Balances with hodies external fo Government 65285 65558
58,896 58,286  Total Current Receivables 66,944 . 87,217
Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables:
1,104 1,104 At 1 April 39 39
(1,065) (1,065} Provision for impairment _ 19 19
0] -0 Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 0 0
0 0 Unused amounts reversed 8 8
38 39 As at 31st March 58 58
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As of 31 March 2018, receivables with a carrying value of £0.058m (2017: £0.039m) were impaired and provided for. The ageing of
these receivables Is as follows:

0 0 3 to 6 months past due 0 0
.3 39 OverGmonthspastdue e 2858
39 29 As at 31st March 58 58

The receivables assessed as individually impaired were mainly other Health Bodies, overseas patients, research companies and
private individuals and it was assessed that not all of the receivable balance may be recovered.

Receivables that are less than three months past their due date are not considered impaired. As at 31 March 2018, receivables with a
carrying value of £1.461 million (2017: £2.006 million) were past their due date but not impalred. The ageing of receivables which are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

1,782 1,782 Up to 3 months past due 851 851
119 119 3 to 8 months past due 469 469
106 165 Over B months past due ] 142 142

2,006 2,006 As at 31st March B ' 1,481 1,481

The receivables assessed as past due but not impaired were mainly NHS Scotland Health Boards and there is no history of default
from these customers recently.

Concentration of cradit risk is limited due to customer base being large and unrelated / government bodies. Due to this, management
believe that there is no future credit risk provision required in excess of the normal provision for doubtful receivables.

The credit quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is assessed by reference to external credit ratings where
available. Where no external credit rating is available, historical information about counterparty default rates is used.

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are shown by their credit risk befow:

2,006 2,006 Existing customers with no defaults in the past ) 1,461 1,461 |

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of each class of receivable.

The NHS Board does not hold any coliateral as securily.

The carrying amount of receivables are denominated in the following currencies: ] — N
58,896 58,286 Pounds o e ) 66,944 67,217 !

All non-current receivables are due within 5 years (2016 : 5 years) from the balance sheet date.

A single exception exists - 100% reimbursement due to NHS A8A equal to an annual payment by The Board of a Clinical Negligence
settlement during the agreement period.

The carrying amount of short term receivables approximates their fair vatue.

The fair value of long term other receivables is £nil (2016 £nil ).

The effective interest rate on non-ctirrent other receivables is 0% (2016: 0 %).

Pension liabilities are discounted at 0.1 % (2016: 0.24 %).
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Note 10 Available for Sale Financial Assets
Consolidated  Board Consolidated  Board
2017 2017 2018 2018
£000 £000 Note £000 £000
0 Government Securities 0
10,086 Other 8,592
10,086 0 Total Assets Available for Sale BS 9,592 ¢
10,646 At 1 April 10,086
364 Additions 583
{1,997) Disposals (607}
1,873 Revaluation surplus / {deficit) transfered to equity (470}
10,086 ] At 31 March 9,592 0
0 Current . BS 0
10,086 Non-current BS 9,592
10,086 0 At 31 March 9,592 0
Note 11.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2018
B ——— £000 P i £OGO
546 Balance at 1 April 540
(6} Net change in cash and cash equivalent balances (113}
540 Balance at 31 March 427
0 __Overdrafts L 0 N
. 540 __Total Cash - Cash Flow Statement 21
The following balances at 31 March were held at:
01 Government Banking Service 118
24 Commercial banks and cash in hand 24
425 Endowment cash_ 28
540 Balance at 31 March 427
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Note 12 Trade and Other Payables
Consolidated Board Consolidated Board
2017 2017 2018 2018
EO000 EO0O o _ Note £000 €000
4,683 4,683 NHS Scotiand payables due within 1 year SFR 30.0 8,178 8,178
4] 0 NHS Non-Scoltish bodies SFR 30.2 23 23
117 117 Amounts Payable to General Fund 117 117
18,378 18,378 FHS Practitioners 18,824 18,824
3,247 3,247 Trade Payables 2,473 2,473
18,037 18,037 Accruals ’ 23,660 23,660
460 460 Deferred income 261 261
17 i Net obligations under Finance Leases 7 19 19
1,727 1,727 Net cbligations under PPP / PFI Contracts ) 18 1,973 1,973
7,959 7,950 Income tax and social security SFR 30.1 8,366 8,366
5,500 5,500 Superannuation 5,640 5,640
223 223 Hotiday Pay Accrual 223 223
446 446 EC Carbon Emissions 420 420
537 462 Other payables 1,485 1,389
56,648 56,573 Other payables due within one year 63,484 63,387
(61,331 64,358 Total payables due within one year . SOFP 71662 715865
e T 78 Net obligations under Finance leases due within 2 years B} Tz T
64 64 Net obligations under Finance Leases due after 2 years but within 5 years 17 68 - 68
188 188 Net obfigations under Finance Leases due after 5 years 17 164 64
1,979 1,979 Net cbligations under PPP / PF| Confracts due @ithin 2 years 18 2,330 2,330
8,256 8,256 Net obligations under PPP / PF| Contracts due after 2 years but within 5 years 18 9,069 9,069
58,133 58,133 Net obligations under PPP f PFI Contracts due after 5 years 18 54,994 54,994
1014 1.014  Deferred income o i o 93 935
59,853 69,653  Tolal payables due after more than one year .. B8 ) 67,580 67,580
"7130,984 130,908 Tolalpayables C 139,242 138,146
WGA Classification
4,883 4,683 NHS Scolland 8,178 8,178
13,463 13,463 Central Government bodies 8,366 §,366
3 3 Whole of Government bedies {5} (5)
o 0 Balances with NHS bodies in England and Wales 23 23
. 1p3.580 105,505 Balances with bodies external to Government 122 679 122583
123,729 123,654  Total current fiabilities B 139,242 139,146
Borrowings included above comprise:
288 288 Finance Leases 271 271
fffff 70,005 70,095  PFlContracts 68,366 86,365 _|
70,383 70,383 Asat3fstMarch 68,637 68,637
The carrying amount and fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follows
271 271 Finance Leases ' : 252 252
68,268 88,368  PFI Confracts 66,393 66,393
68,639 68,639  As at 31st March 66,645 66,645
R The carrying amount of receivables are denominated in the following currencles; I -
123,729 123,654 Pounds 139,241 139,145

73



NHS Ayrshire and Arran

Noftes to the Accounts

for the year ended 31st March 2018

Note 13 a. Provisions - Consolidated and Board

Pensions Clinical & Medical Participation Other Total

& similar Legal Claims in CNORIS {non-

ohligations against NHS endowment)
e £000 £000 . £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2017 7,467 50,752 36,276 128 94,623
Arising during the year 266 17,988 7,836 421 26,510
Utilised during the year (541) (2,618) (1,448) (188) (4,773)
Unwinding of discount 91 (146) o (55)
__Reversed unutilised ' (13,841) {2,886) (148) (16,942)

_ At 31 March 2018 _1,216 .. 52,281 39,631, 235 99,363

The amounts shown above in relation to Clinicat & Medical Legal Claims against NHS Board are stated gross.
The amount of any expected reimbursements are separaiely disclosed as receivables in note 9.
Payable in one year 544 26,203 5777 32,624
Payable between 2 - 5 years 6,672 18,398 22,556 47,626
Payable between 6 - 10 years : 600. 808 1,408
Thereafter ) o 7,080 10,490 235 17,805
At 31 March 2018 7,216 52,281 39,631 235 99,363
Note 13 a. Provisions - Consolidated and Board Prior Year
Pensions Clinical & Medical Participation Other Total
& similar Legal Claims in CNORIS {non-
obligations against NHS endowment)

e £000 £000 ___£000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2016 7,058 27,242 22,153 433 56,886
Arising during year 274 29,258 18,191 206 47,929
Utilised during year {540) (998) (1,166) (132) (2,836)
Unwinding during year C720 : an 703
Reversed unutilised 45 (4,750) (2,885) (379)  (8,059)
At 31 March 2017 7487 50,752 36,276 128 94,623
Payable in one year 544 : 4,000 7.670 12,214
Payable between 2 - 5 years 7,467 46,752 16,613 70,832

- Payable between 6 - 10 years : 795 795
_Thereafter _(544) 11,198 128 10782
At 31 March 2017 7,467 50,752 36,276 128 94,623

Pensions and similar obligations

The Board meets the additional costs of benefits beyond the normal NHS Superannuation Scheme for Scotland benefits in
respect of employees who retire early by paying the required amounts annually to the NHS Superannuation Scheme for Scotland
over the period between early departure and normal retirement date. The Board provides for this in full when the early retirement
programme becomes binding by establishing a provision for the estimated payments discounted by the Treasury Discount Rate of
0.24% in real terms. The Board expects expenditure to be charged to this provision for a period of up to 38 years.
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Clinical & Medical Legal Claims against NHS Board

The Board holds a provision to meet costs of all outstanding and potential clinical and medical negligence claims. Alllegal claims
notified to the Board are processed by the Scottish NHS Central Legal Office who decide upon risk liability and likely outcomes of
each case. The provision contains sums for settlement awards, legal expenses and third party costs. Clinical and medical
negligence cases lodged can be extremely complex. It is expected that expenditure will be charged to this provision for a period
of up to ten years. The amounts disclosed are stated gross and the amount of any expected reimbursements are shown
separately as debtors in the notes to the accounts.

Participation in CNORIS
The Board is required to participate in the Clinical Negligence and Other Risks indemnity Scheme (CNORIS) and the above
provision relates to its share of future settlements. Further details are given in Note 13(b}.

Other (non-endowment)

This relates to provisions for employer or public liability claims which are processed in the same manner as clinical and medicat
negligence claims described above by the Scottish NHS Central Legal Office with provisions shown gross and the amount of any
expected reimbursements shown separately as debtors in the notes to the accounts. The provisions are expected to be settled
within the next 2 years.

Note 13b.  Clinical Negligence and Other Risks Indemnity Scheme (CNORIS)

2017 2018
e .. £000 £000
Provision recognising individual claims against the NHS Board as at 31 March " 13a 50,880 52,517
Associated CNORIS receivable at 31 March 9 (48,578) (49,727)
Provision recognising the NHS Board's liability from participating in the scheme 2 17 ..36.276 39631
Net Total Provision relating to CNORIS at 31 March - o 38,578 42,421

The Clinical Negligence and Other Risks Scheme (CNORIS) has been in operation since 2000. Participation in the scheme is
mandatory for all NHS boards in Scotland. The scheme allows for risk pooling of legal claims in relation to clinical negligence
and other risks and works in a similar manner to an insurance scheme. CNORIS has an agreed threshold of £25k and any claims
with a value less than this are met directly from within boards’ own budgets. Participants e.g. NHS boards contribute to the
CNORIS pool each financial year at a pre-agreed contribution rate based on the risks associated with their individual NHS board.
If a claim is settled the board will be reimbursed by the scheme for the value of the settiement, less a £25k “excess” fee. The
scheme allows for the risk associated with any large or late in the financial year legal claims to be managed and reduces the level
of volatility that individual boards are exposed fo.

When a legal claim is made against an individual board, the board will assess whether a provision or contingent liability for that
legal claim is required. If a provision is required then the board will also create an associated receivable recognising
reimbursement from the scheme if the legal claim settles. The provision and associated receivable are shown in the first two lines
above. The receivable has been natted off against the provision o reflect reimbursement from the scheme.

As a result of participation in the scheme, boards should also recognise that they will be required to make contributions to the
scheme in future years. Therefore a second provision that recognises the board's share of the total CNORIS liability of
NHSScotland has been made and this is reflected in third line above.

Therefore there are two related but distinct provisions required as a result of participation in the scheme. Both of these provisions
as well as the associated receivable have been shown in the note above tfo aid the reader’s understanding of CNORIS.

Further information on the scheme can be found at: http:/iwww.clo.scot.nhs.uk/our-services/cnoris.aspx
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Note 14 Contingent Liaiblities
The following contingent liabilities have not been provided for in the accounts;
2017 2018
£000 e . £OOD
13,567 Clinical and medical compensation payments T ' " 18,474
222 Employer's liability 94
30 Third party habiity 10
- 50 Other - Girvan Groundwater Monitoring N N _ L -
13,868 Total Contingent Liabilities B . 18,628
11,639 Clinical and medical compensation payments 14,325
30 Employersliabiity e N
11,669 Total Contingent Assets ' ' 14,326
Note 15 Events After the End of the Reporting Year

There are no events after the end of the reporting period that would have a material effect on the accounts. The Accounting Officer
authorised these financial statements for issue on 25 June 2018.
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Note 16 Capital Commitments
The Board has the following capital commitments which have not been provided for in the accounts
2017 2018
122 Building for Better Care ' 0
477 University Hospital Crosshouse Endoscopy Suite 0
311 University Hospital Ayr Front Door Works _ 0
0 University Hospital Crosshouse Static X-Ray Room 1 220
o University Hospital Crosshouse Managed Lab Service 145
Q  Tanyholm Drive, Irvine Project 538
910 Total Capital Commitments N e 903
750 Crosshouse Hospital Value Adding 750
250 Capital to Save on Revenue - Energy Schemes 140
1,449 University Hospital Crosshouse Endoscopy 0
1,123 Tarryholm Drive Project, Irvine 0
1.265 University Hospital Ayr Biomass _ _ 700
420 Biggart Biomass/CHP 0
0 University Hospital Crosshouse OMFS Treatment Room 258
0 University Hospital Crosshouse Switchboard Extension 95
9] GP Premises _ i 221 |
§,257 Total Authorised but not Contracted 2,164
Note 17 Commitments Under Operating Leases
Total future minimum payments under leases are stated below
2017 2018
EO00 e 2000
10 Not later one year ' 10
10 Later than one year, not later than 2 years 10
29 Later than two year, not later than five years 29
65 Later than five years 55
114 Tota! Land 104
35 Not later than one year 6
8 Later than one year, not later than 2 years 8
41 Total Buildings 6
179 Not later than one year 89
179 Total Other a9
179 Hire of equipment {including vehicles} 99
51 Other pperating leases 51
230 Total Amounts charged to Operating Costs in year : 150
Commitments Under Finance Leases
Tolal net obligation under finance leases is analysed in Note 12 Payables
33 Rentals due within one year 12 33
33 Rentals due between one and two years (inclusive) 12 . 33
99 Rentals due between two and five years (inclusive) 12 99
223 Rentals due after five years ' 12 190
- (100}  Less inferest element e . (84}
288 Total Finance Leases (Buildings) 21
Aggregate Rentals Receivable in the year
L 209 Total of finance & operating leases 242 |
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Note 18 Commitments under PFI Contracts on Balance Sheet
The Board has entered into the following on-balance sheet PF! projects.

East Ayrshire Community Hospital (EACH} is situated in the town of Cumnock. The facility provides Inpatient beds, Elderly
Mental 1ll, and GP Acute, there are also day facilities for Frail Elderly and Elderly Mental I and Qutpatient Clinics (including
AGP's). The 25 Year contract commenced in August 2000 and will be completed in August 2025. 4 years prior to the end of the
25 year contract period, negotiations will have been undertaken to determine future options available for the site.

Ayrshire Maternity Unit (AMU) is adjoined to University Hospital Crosshouse in Kilmarnock. The facility provides Area Midwifery
services for in-patients, day patients, and out-patients. The 30 year contract commenced in July 2006 and will be completed in
July 2036. At the end of the contract period, the building is available to transfer to the NHS at no additional cost.

Woodland View shares a site in rvine with the Ayrshire Central Hospital. The building is a Non-Profit Distributing model (NPD})
and reached practical complefiion and handover on the 1st Aprit 2018, The building provides a Mental Health and Frail Elderly
inpatient facility for Ayrshire. The 25 year contract period commenced on the 1st April 2016 and will be completed on the 31st

March 2041. At the end of the contract period, the building will revert to NHS ownership.

Under IFRIC 12 the asset is treated as an asset of the Board and included in the Board's accounts as a non-current asset. The
liability to pay for the property is in substance a finance lease obligation. Contractual payments therefore comprise two
elements: imputed finance lease charges and service charges. The imputed finance lease obligation is as foliows:

Total obligations under on-balance sheet PF1/ PPP / Hub contracts for the following periods comprises:

2017 East Ayrshire Ayrshire Woodland 2018
Community Maternity View
Hospital Unit

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
7882  Rentals due within 1 year S T 1,057 1,810 4069  7.836

7,842 Due within 1to 2 years | 1,997 1,868 4,072 7,937

24,0589 Due within 2 to & years ) " 5,940 5,639 12,231 23,810
109032 DueafterSyears . 1640 25723 74000 101363
148,815 Grosg Minimum Lease Payments 11534 35,040 94,372 140,946

N less;

{6,155)  Rentals due within 1 year (1,183) {1,366) (3,314} (5,863)

(5,863) Due within 1 to 2 years (1,013) {1,338) (3,256) {5,607)

(15,803) Due within 2 to 5 years ' (1,544) : {3,824) (9,373) (14,741)

(50,899 Due after 5 years o (182) (13,015)  (33,172)  (46,369)
" (78.720) InterestElement (383 (19543) = (49,115) (72,580}

giving

1,727 Rentals due within 1 year : - 774 444 755 1,973

1,679 Due within 1to 2years 984 530 - 816 2,330

' 8,256 Pue within 2 fo. 5 years ; 4,396 1,815 : 2,858 9,069

58133 DueaflerbSyears o 1,458 12,708 40,828 54994

70,095  Present value of minimum lease payments 7,612 15,497 45,257 68,366

3,397  Rentals due within 1 year 1,655 366 1612 3,633

3,481 Due within 1 to 2 years B 1,697 374 1,652 3,723
10,707 Due within 2 to 5 years : o ‘5,218 1,152 5,081 11,451
41811  Dueafter5years .. 573 587 30489 42,105
59,396  Service elements due in future periods 14,309 7,769 38,834 60,912

129,491 Total Commitments T 21,921 23266 84,091 129,278

6,882 Interest charges 6,907

185 Contingent rents {included in Other charges) 263
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Note 19 Pension Costs

(a) The NHS A&A participates in the NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland). The scheme is an unfunded statutory public |
service pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK Government. The scheme is financed by payments |
from employers and from those current employees who are members of the scheme and paying contributions at |
progressively higher marginal rates based on pensionable pay, as specified in the regulations. The rate of employer
contributions is set with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by the scheme actuary. The last four-yearly
valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2012. The next valuation will be as at 31 March 2016 and this will set
contribution rates from 1 April 2019.

{b) NHS A&A has no liability for other employers obligations to the multi-employer scheme.

(c) As the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus to distribute on the wind-up of the scheme or
withdrawal from the scheme.

(d)

(i) The scheme is an unfunded muiti-employer defined benefit scheme.

(ii) It is accepted that the scheme can be treated for accounting purposes as a defined contribution scheme in
circumstances where the NHS ASA is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.

(iii) The employer contribution rate for the period from 1 April 2015 was 14.9% of pensionable pay. While the
employee rate applied is a variable it will provide an actuarial yield of 9.8% of pensichable pay.

(iv) At the last vaiuation a shortfall of £1.4 billion was identified in the notional fund which will be repaid by a
supplementary rate of 2.6% of employers pension contributions for fifteen years from 1 April 2015. This contribution is
included in the 14.9% employers' contribution rate,

(v) NHS A&A level of participation in the scheme is 5.5% based on the proportion of employer contributions (£753.9
mitlion ) paid in 2017-18.

2017 2018

R e e i 2000 _£000
"“Pension cost charge for the year 740278 41853

Additional Costs arising from early retirement 540 541

Provisions / Liabilities / Pre-payments included in the Balance Shee 1,750 - 1,645

Pension costs for the year for staff transferred from local authority . 0 - 0
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Note 20 Presentation of The Statement of Consolidated Net Expenditure

The presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure has been changed following a review of
our financial statements in order to provide information which is more reliable and better reflects the activities
of NHS Ayrshire & Arran. The comparative information in respect of 2016-17 has been presented in the new

format in the SOCNE. No retrospective restatements were required.

Changes to the presentation of the SoCNE affect expenditure and income categories. Staff costs and

expenditure on drugs and medical supplies have been removed from previous expenditure categories and are
now shown on the face of the SoCNE. This provides greater transparency over the nature of NHS A&A's

expenditure. Further information on the composition of expenditure categories is disclosed in Note 3.

Income is now shown as a single figure. Further details are disclosed in Note 4.

2017
... £000
2016-17 expenditure as published
Hospital and Community 1,036,951
Family Health - 187,547
Administration Costs 2,752
 Other Non-Clinical Services . 26884 -
Gross expenditure for the year 1,254,134
2016-17 expenditure conforming to the new presentation
Staff Costs 395,844
Other expenditure :
Independent Primary Care Services 103,376
Drugs and medical supplies 152,265
_ Other health care expenditure 602648
_ Gross expenditure for the year 1,254,134
:__ivnlbvemeﬁt in groés ékpenditure fof the 'year 0 o
2017
£000
2016-17 income as published
Hospital and Community Income 402,591
Family Health Income - 5,436
Administration income 14
- Other OperatingIncome .~ .~ 18,446
Gross expenditure for the year 426,487
2016-17 expenditure conforming to the new presentation
~Operating income e 426487
Gross expenditure for the year 426,487
~ Movement in gi'oss expenditt_i;é'f'or the year 0
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Note 21 Retrospective Restatements
There are no prior year adjustment which have been recognised in these accounts.

Note 22 Restated Primary Statements
There are no related financial statements requiring disciosure.

Note 23 Finanical instruments - Financial Assets and Liabilities
2017 Loans and Available 2018
Note Receivables for sale
F000  Financial Assets - Consolidated - o o ___fooo £000 £000
10,088 Investments 10 9,592 9,502
Trade and other receivables exciuding prepayments, reimbursements '
6,579 of provisions and VAT recoverable. e 13,838 13,838
..540 Cash and cash equivalents i " . H ) 427 427
.. A7,208 Financial Assets per Balance Shest . ) 14,268 9,592 23,857
Financial Assets - Board
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments, reimbursements
5,968 of provisions and VAT recoverable, 9 4111 41
115 Cash and cash equivalents - - 1t 14z L 42
6,084 Financial Assets per Balance Sheet 14,253 0 14,253
2017 . I : Note 2018
£000 Financial Llabiiiheg - Qonsol[dated ) . - o  go00
288 Finance lease liabilities _ 12 271
70,095 PFI Liabilities i o 12 68,366
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities (VAT and 12
33,730 Income tax and spcial security), deferred income and superannuation ™ ) 47,224
104,113 Financial Liabilities per Balance Sheot T ' - 115,861
Financial Liaiblities - Board
288 Finance lease liabilities 12 271
70,095 PFI Liabifities ' 12 68,366
Trade and other payables exciuding statutory liabillties (VAT and
33855 income tax and social security}, deferred income an_d superannuation 12 o 47,128
104,038 Financial Liabllities per Balance Sheet . 115,765
Note 23 b Finanical Risk Factors

The NHS Board's activities expose it fo a variety of financial risks:

Credit Risk The possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due.

Liquidity Risk ~ The possibility that the NHS Board might net have funds avallable to meet its commitments to make payments.

Market Risk The possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates, stock market movements or
foreign exchange rates.
Because of the largely non-trading nalure of its activities and the way in which govemnment departments are financed, NHS
Ayrshire and Arran fs not exposed to the degree of financtal risk faced by business entities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposis with hanks and other institutions, as well as credit exposures to custemers, including
outstanding recelvables and committed transactions. For banks and other institutions, only independently rated parties with an minimum rating of "A’
are accepted. Customers are assessed, taking info account their financial position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits
being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the BHS Board.

The utilisation of credit imits is regutarly monitored. No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and no losses are
expected from non-performance by any counterparties in relation to deposits.
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Liguidity Risk

The Scottish Parliament makes provision for the use of resources by the NHS Board for revenue and capital purposes in a Budget Act for each
financial year. Resources and accruing resources may be used only for the purposes specified and up to the amounts specified in the Budget Act.
The Act also specifies an overall cash authorisation to operate for the financial year. The NHS Board is not therefore exposed o significant liquidity
risks.

The table below analyses the financiat liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to coniractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Liquidity Less than Between1 Between 2 Over 5
1 year and 2 years and & years
_at3MstMarch 2017 . . £000 £000 £000 £000
PFI Liabilities 7,836 7,937 23,810 101,363
Finance lease Habilities 33 a3 99 190
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities . 0 0 0 3
CTotal | o o N 7,889 7,970 23,908 101,853
at 31st March 2018
PF} Liabilities 7.882 7,842 24,059 109,032
Finance lease kiabilities 33 33 g9 223
Trade and other payables excluding staiutory liabilities ) B 0 Y ] 0
Total N ' 7,915 7,878 24,158 109,255
Market Risk

The NHS Board has no powers to borrow or invest surplus funds. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities
and are not held to manage the risks facing the NHS Board in undertaking its activities.
i. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The NHS Board has no significant interest bearing assets or liabilities and as such income and expenditure cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates,

ii. Foreign Currency and Price Risks
The NHS Board is not exposed to foreign currency risk or equity security price rigk.

Note 23 ¢ Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market Is determined using valuation technigues. The carrying value less
impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fiows at the current HM Treasury interest rate that is avaitabie for simitar
financial instruments.

Note 24 Derivative Financial Instruments - Consolidated and Board
There are no derivative financial instruments in 2017-18 or prior years.

Note 25 Related Party Transactions

Ayrshire and Arran Endowment Funds are managed by Trustees who are also Directors of the Board (as notified in the Remuneration report) and is
therefore a related party. During the year the Board made payments to Endowments of £177,000 and received payments from Endowments of
£1,410,000 with a balance of £277,000 due to the Board outstanding at year end.

East Ayrshire Integration Jolnt Board (1JB) is a related parly of NHS Ayrshire and Arran. Ruring the year the Board received payments from the 1JB
of £152,381,000, and made payments to the 1JB of £173,576,000. There is an outstanding balance of £544,000 at the year end, being the Board's
share of the [JB surplus.

Norih Ayrshire integration Joint Board {lJB) is a related party of NHS Ayrshire and Arran. During the year the Board received payments from the |JB
of £144,667,000, and made payments to the [JB of £167,258,000. There is an outstanding balance of £2,904,000 at the year end, being the Beard's
share of the IJB deficit

South Ayrshire Integration Joint Board (1IB) is a related party of NHS Ayrshire and Arran. During the year the Board received payments from the [JB

of £93,020,000, and made payments to the 1JB of £114,366,000, There is an outstanding balance of £1,124,000 at the year end, being the Board's
share of the 4B surplus.

82




£8

£lv'658 {¥av) 197°1 (152) 0 2c5°L 685°258 Jead ay) Joj armppuadxaJoN  1l4'828
o9vs -~ (b8 19Z't (152 0 0 0 seq Anbe uB o Jo} peluNCJoe SaIMUSA Julof pue SBIBIDOSSY  HTE
(28121 0 0 0 0 (£1Z°1) (086'0F) ¥ C awooul Bunerado :sse  (/8¥'9Zd)
PZLLOS'L 0 0 0 0 85.°2 Jeak 3y} ioj INjpuadxa ss019 PCLPSTL
779088 0 o] [3] [¢ §51C _ aimypuadxe 2l yiesyPYIQ 795 109
££8°'2S1 0 0 0 0 0 £E8'e51 saj|ddns eoipawi pue sBniq 6922461
C LiE'S0L 0 0 0 0 0 12£'60} ag se0lARg ale) AlBuilld Juspuadepul  9/£'¢0)
8L LY 0 0 0 0 0 8L ¥ eg §JS00 iBlg  9TB'96E
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 ajoN 0003
diysiaupey diysiauped diysiauped
ales jernog aley) [e1n0g aled [enog jusunsnipy
dnoun 2 YyeaH \pnos g YyeaH uuoN g ypeaHiseg  dnosbiau) juswmopug pieog dnoup
8102 8102 8102 8L02 8102 8102 8102 2102
aimipuadxg 19N aasuayssdwos Jo Juswelelg pajeplosus) B 27 IJON
80/ (6v2) A CL9 usodap UO SSICW pPUE SaJUEB[EQ YUEQ S& UINS sjundwe JEjsuopy
0003 0003 0003 0003
sMoIng SMOLEU|
8102 $5015) S5015) LL0Z

‘mojeg Aj@leIpeLlus BIqE] 2U) U) N0 195 a1e ASY] "Sagunoos pals) pue sedap Uo SIUOLL puB SaJuejeq yUeq SB yons
‘s1esse Asgjauow pasiiduuc) sanjea Ateleucw aquose o] {eogorid Sem ) yoiym 01 Sjep pouad Suipodal ) Je piay S18ssSe 9y SUNOIDE SUI Ul PIPROU] joU a1 pue sjesse |ejuswpedop jou se asay |,

s1988Y Aued puyL 9z 90N

102 USIejy 1S).¢ papus J2ak sy 1o}

SIUNGO2Y 2L} 0} SSION

e
SHN UBlY pue SAysiAy SHN

Il
el




¥8

£LIEPYT TL'L ¥06'2) FE] 0 208'6 160°982 funba sishedxe; |20 ¥erose
205'6 0 0 0 [} 206'6 0 31008 18ni] uo pj3y puny avo'lL
{92z'L) ¥zl (¥06°2) ¥55 ] 0 0 - 31008 muaauof pue sajenosse - sansesal laylo - (08e)
981501 0 0 o 0 0 921.'s0l 31008 SA12S8) UCHEN[BASY 788'06
S06'0€1 0 0 o 0 ] $06'0¢k 31208 © puny[essuRgy og1'6¥l
Kinb3 siadedxe)
(TR 4 A ¥YZi'L {r06'z) ¥s5 Q 205'6 160952 sajjliqel] s8] 51988y PEV 0ST
(gze'zgl) 0 {r06°z) 0 0 0 {6LrreEL)  senuqEl Jusund-uou e30)  (§89°¢5L)
#06°2) 06°2) 1] saimuan ol pue sjeposse Ul sagpqer] - TEESTT
(096°29) ] 0 0 0 ] (08¢'29) zL sejqeded Joyjo pue apel]  (£59'69)
rsanHIE) [e1ousuld
(6eg'99) 0 0 0 ] 0 (6£8°99) ec) suolsinold  (60F'28)
969°1.8¢ AN ) 55 0 2056 aLsole 10eI] JUALIND JOU 553 SJASSE JUALNI-UON  GLL'YOY
(581'v0)) 0 0 0 LIZ {g2¢) (680°F0L) sagen Jusung eyol  (062°99)
T ) ) 0 N} 0 ) SBINJUSA JUIO] pUE S)RIDCSSE Ul SB1) )
(19912} 0 ) 0 LLT (gL8) (595'L4) 4] sajqeded oo pue apRaL  {920'%5)
o pqet [enuBUl
(#25'28) 0 0 0 0 ¢ (rzg'zed egl SUOISIACI (rrz'zL)
Leg'ser b c4 %" 0 L eE] (222 1896 665'vLY sjasseejol  60¢'0LF
200°9% 0 0 0 222) 682 966°St . S}9SSE JUBLNID [Bj0L 1910t
[1) 0 i) I 0 ] i) az a[es Joj Pjay S PAISSElD S19SSY G2
Prad 0 0 0 0 582 Til LL sjusjennbs yses pue Ysed  Ob§
¥236°0¥ 0 ] 0 {LL2) ¥ 15T LY 6 SUEAS0SI IS0 PUB 3Rl 905'GE
’ S12SSE |[euUBLE]
165 0 0 0 0 0 166F g SALOWUBALY 060'%
cL8'6EY vZl'L ] Y59 1] Z856 £09'8ZY sjasse juauns-uou [e3ol  grZ'ocy
G86'%2 [] [1] [i] [0 [} 096 G2 6 saqeAIRIl a0 pue spel].  TBEES
849'L ¥Zl'L 0 #56 ) 0 ] SIMUAA U0 PUE SAJBII0SSE U] SJUSLESSALL * €46
265'6 0 0 0 ] 269'6 0 B0} s1osse [elouBUY Sjes 1o} S|qellery  980°0L
1519556 |RlQUBLI
£P9'Z0P 0 0 ] 0 0 £P9'20F e/ wewdnba pue juerd 'Ausdeid  678'S6E
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
diysstaujed diysisuped diysiauped
21e] [e1205 9 dle) [B1I0G Y AURH [RII0S wswysnipy
dnoi jeaH Yyinoes §3[eaH YHON o yjeaH 1sex  dnoiBuajuj Juswmopug pieog dnoigy
8102 aL0z 2L0Z 8102 8102 210z gLez 102
uoIISOd |E1oUBUL JO JUSWISIEIS pajepllosucD  q L7 JON
wmhy R 21.0Z U2IBIN 1S|.€ PSPUD TEDA 3U) IO}
2tk Sunoooy oG] 0] 8316/

el
SHN UBlly pue Sigsiiy SHN




58

eV 082 or9 {£29°L) 651 vl at0'LL 890°0tZ Aunba siakedxe) je1o ¥1'992
ov0' L _ 9¥0'31 31008 J$n1] wo pjay pung 2650l
(099 ovo (gza'l) 851 rrl - HEDOS  NUSA IOl pUB SOJEI00SSE - SAABSAI JBUID © PPL
z88'06 288'06 31008 2112331 UONEN[EASY £19'ce
981'6¥L _ 981'6tr1 31008 _ puny jeisusn gc9' 191

funbz stafedxe]

¥£Y'05T or9 (g29'1) 851 bad) ao'lL 290°0YZ Salyjiqelf 959 S)ossY L9z
(z90'zs1) 0 0 0 0 0 (z90'zs1) Sajl|iqe]| JuaLIN-uou [ejol {060'6L1)
Il 0 SBIMUSA JUOE pue S1e100SSE Ul SSIlgeT ]
(£59'69) (£69'69) FA sajgefed Joyio pue spel| 21zl
: ‘sanicell jeousuLy -
{(60¥'28) (6or'ze} eg| SUOISIACI (gL6'9p)
96t oY ovs £z9°)- 651 L 9b0‘L1 0£LZ6E SAUNIGEL] IWILIND J2U $$9] $198SE JUIMNI-UON veeiese
(£1629) {gz9°L) 652 (¥ee) (s12'99) SR JUILND RIOE (920°Z9)
[ [ i) S2UMUIA JUIO[ PUE JJLI20SSE Ul SAHIQET 0
{920'¢5) 852 (pee) (100'%5) ZL sajqeded Joujc pue apely E11'zs) .
:safillige) [eoueulL
(F1z'zZL) #1z'z)) egl SUDISINOLY (c16'6)
60F 0LY or9 0 651 (s11) 08s'LL sreast $)98sE |EJOL 09zZ' Lt
_ti6'sl 0 . (] 0 (es2) 62t 8¢6°LL sjosse JuUaunD |BI0L - P69°LL
G2 G2 qL les 1o} plaYy e POYSSED SIeSSY  OVE L
ovs _ T GH A sjue|eanba Usea pue yseo ors
21E'¥l {(652) 668 80.L'¢H 8 STYQEAIIDRI JBLIO PUB BpEl Y, 18811
;5195SE [BIUBUIL
060'% 060'% g S3ueIIIAU[ 126°'¢
st 15T o9 0 651 el 980°0L 0¥ ory . SIASSE JUSUNI-UOU |BI0L. . - 995'GZY
i 3LS Y 8 S3|gBAIZIS] J3UI0 PUEB 3ped), 06E%c
£¥6 oF9 661 il s2INUaA U0l pUB SSJBID0SSE Ul SJUBWIISSAU| il
980°0¢ 980'01 01 SjeSSe |RIOUBUY 3[ES JO) AGBIRAY 8r9'0L
o 1sjasSSE |BousUl]
629'¢6¢ 629'G6¢ el wewdinba pue jueld ‘Apadold 99€°'66¢
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
e |elxos ey |e|308 alen
2 YyesH 2 uyeay [eog g wusuysnipy

dnoig §\nog YHON y)esH yses dnoiBiaju] Juswamopug preog dnolg
L0z LL0Z 102 L10Z LL0Z 2102 LL0Z 910z

13 104 = UOSOd [el3ueul, JO JUSWSLE]S PAJeplosSuDD ‘q 2z 910N

L. mam 8102 WIBN 516 PapUs 169K 5 10}
: \.tﬁ&n) SIUNGIZY 3U) 0] SANON
» SHN Uelly pue angsiAy SHN




98

[ lzp 592 UlieW LEIB YSEO 1IN OFS SZv SL1
ors Gey By | Je ysed 71qap IeN arg (T4 Ll
€1L) (ovLy - 1z 18k U1 yseo Ut {asesioap) / aselou} (g) (7 {2

LSEQ/Jap 18U Ui JUSWaA0L O} MCH YSED J3U JO USREIDUOISY
Zr 1114 o zrL poliad auj JO pu? Su3 Je SIUS[EAINDI USED pue ysey oS sZv gLk
Gl SiT ponad aup jo Buinuibag 2u) e sjusjeainba yses pue yse) opS [543 L1
(£11) (orl) 2z pouad sy 1 SJUSEANDS USED PUE YSED Ul 9582.03D 1N {9) (¥) @
88g'gz8 0 £89°6Z8 Bupueuid 13N 866'£08 0 86608
(se5'9) i) 9269} SIOBNUOD dddfldd 189S soueleq-uo - TBEEES E68°9)
i pUE $2583| SVUEUY JO JUILLSID JSauB)y
0 0 0 pledisamsiu] g 0
(ovL'y) 0 {orL'L) . £J0E4U0 |d J9RUS SoUBIR] (ror'L) (ror'L)
-uo pue s3sEes| IquLUY JO Homamm,_ ul mycwﬁ>ma 0 Juss umu_.n_mo
095've8 0 096'vE8 Buipun4 18£Z18 15£°2L8
S3IPAIROE m:_u.._m:mh Wol SMOL) 1SR
{#ro‘g) al¥ {oovg) sapiAloe Buysaaul Wouy MmOINo Yysed JoN {coc's) 81z (06+°LL)
Z6E ZBE I paAIBIEl 19819 or FOF
£09 209 ] . SIUSLSIAUL JO BBs wWou s1dIRdRY JPL'Z e
LEE i) 1E¢ Juawdinba pue jueid ‘Auadold jo [esodsIp JO SPEIY0IH 2881 285°L
(e89) (£g%) 0 SUONIPPY JuBLUSSAU| (rog) (r9g)
(15.'¢) 0 (L62'g) wswdinba pue jueld ‘Auadoud jo sseyoing (z10'€L) (zLo'sl)
S3}lanoe mc_uwm_:_.m WG} SMO USBED
(256°21L8) (95%) (Lov'218) sananoe Bugessdo woyy mopno ysea sy (LOL'v6L) (1612 (oLg'z6d)
TPV EL $08 6E5CL jendes Buppom v sjuswsaoly  BZEEL |G 86T
(zeg) (zeg) Q 1502 Bugessdo 15U U pasiufioosl sigea90al JSaISU JONPaA (#OF) (ror) 0
926'9 o 9Z8'9 1500 Buielado jou Ui pasiubioosal sjqeded 158Ul Y2RY PRY 668'0 668'9
£66'0Z 0Lt £28'02 SUOIDBSURI} USED-UOU Joj sjuaunsnipy  LbE'pL {£22'1L) BLE'GL
(z6'858) (ges’L) (e9¢'259) s00 Bunessdolay  (1/¥'928) ey (g96'8Z8) |
0003 0007 0003 sananoe Buiielado wolj smoy) ysed 0003 0003 0002
dnoig) SO pLE] pieog dnoacy juswmopug pieog
8102 8102 2102 2102 L1402 2102
SMO| USED JO JUSWSIEIS PIIRPIOSUCD "3 IZ JION

_Tl sy 9107 UoJBIA ISLE PIPUS 1A 2y} 1o}

Lo Py BJUNOTOY U} O} SSION

_ SHN Uelly pUE 94usiAy SHN




Direction by the Scottish Ministers

3

Ayrshire and Arran Health Board

DIREGTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

The Scotlish Ministers, in pursuance of sections B6(1), (1B) and (3} of the

Nationa! Health Serviges (Scofland) Act 1578, hersby give the Tollawing
direction. '

THe. staternent o accounts forths ﬁizanctéi"yﬁér ended 31 Mdroh 2005, ard

subsequent-years, shall cornply with the accouniing principles and disclosure
squirements of the edition of the Government Finandial Reporting Manual

{FReM) gvtﬁ‘ch Is In forcs for fhe yearfor which the stafement of accounts are

Subject tu #he fordgaing requirements, the.siccotints, shall also pomply with
any accounts formal, dlsclosure and acedunting requirements Issued by the

. ‘Scotish Minlslers irom fifie o e,

The acoolints shall be prépared S0 as fo give a tre ard fair view of the
inconie end axpehdifure-and cash fiows for the financial year, and of-the stats,
of afils as gf the-ond ofthe financidl ysar, |

This direction shall ke reproduced &s &n appendix to the stalement of
gtcounts, The‘diracton-given on 30 Dacember 20021 hsraby revoked, ‘

/ff? ¥ /

trish Minlsters

Bigned by the authority of the &7
Dated \g .’;L\;LS{JL-, .
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